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AUDITOR’S REPORT ON ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

To the Shareholders of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A.:

We have audited the annual accounts of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi , S.A., consisting of the
balance sheet at 31 December 2012, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the cash
flow statement and related notes for the year then ended. The company’s directors are responsible for
the preparation of these annual accounts in accordance with the financial reporting framework
applicable to the entity (as identified in Note 2 to the accompanying annual accounts), and in
particular, with the accounting principles and criteria included therein. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the annual accounts taken as a whole, based on the work performed in accordance with
legislation governing the audit practice in Spain, which requires the examination, on a test basis, of
evidence supporting the annual accounts and an evaluation of whether their overall presentation, the
accounting principles and criteria applied and the estimates made are in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts for 2012 present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. at 31 December 2012 and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework, and in particular, with the accounting principles and criteria included therein.

The accompanying directors’ Report for 2012 contains the explanations which the directors consider
appropriate regarding the company’s situation, the development of its business and other matters and
does not form an integral part of the annual accounts. We have verified that the accounting
information contained in the directors’ Report is in agreement with that of the annual accounts for
2012. Our work as auditors is limited to checking the directors’ Report in accordance with the scope
mentioned in this paragraph and does not include a review of information other than that obtained
from the company’s accounting records.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L.

Original in Spanish signed by Luis Sánchez Quintana
Audit Partner

20 February 2013
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At 31 December

ASSETS Note 2012 2011

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 67,462 42,247

Intangible assets 5 1,979 1,790

Property, plant and equipment 6 24,811 23,599

Non-current investments in group & associated companies 8 & 9 10,223 10,227

Equity instruments 10,223 10,227

Non-current financial investments 29,362 6,480

Equity instruments 7 & 11 28,141 5,110

Other financial assets 7 & 10 1,221 1,370

Deferred tax assets 21 1,087 151

CURRENT ASSETS 128,448 115,281

Inventories 12 25,569 15,936

Trade and other receivables 94,036 64,557

Trade receivables for sales of goods and services 7 & 10 29,463 48,782

Trade receivables, Group & associated companies 7 & 10 54,535 6,191

Sundry debtors 7 & 10 623 966

Employees 7 & 10 85 102

Current income tax assets 23 3,855 3,682

Other credits with Public Administrations 24 5,475 4,834

Current investments in Group & associated companies 7 & 10 2 2

Credits to companies 2 2

Current financial investments 7 & 10 - 6,000

Other financial assets - 6,000

Current accruals and prepayments 223 331

Cash and cash equivalents 13 8,618 28,455

TOTAL ASSETS 195,910 157,528
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At 31 December

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 2012 2011

EQUITY 89,230 75,728

Equity 81,465 67,481

Capital 14 3,000 3,000

Reserves 15 6,959 6,959

(Treasury shares) 15 (2,060) (1,922)

Retained earnings 15 52,932 51,740

Profit for the year 16 20,634 7,704

Adjustments for change in value (299) 256

Available-for-sale financial assets (299) 256

Grants, donations and legacies received 17 8,064 7,991

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,006 33,585

Non-current debt 7 & 18 24,164 26,549

Bank borrowings 18 1,213 2,840

Other financial liabilities 18 22,951 23,709

Deferred income tax liabilities 21 5,837 5,802

Non-current accruals 19 1,005 1,234

CURRENT LIABILITIES 75,674 48,215

Current provisions 20 1,651 1,249

Current debt 7 & 18 5,053 5,273

Bank borrowings 18 1,600 1,959

Other financial liabilities 18 3,453 3,314

Current debt with Group and associated companies 31 121 107

Trade and other payables 68,670 41,457

Trade payables 18 18,592 20,479

Trade payables, group and associated companies 18 45,041 15,426

Sundry creditors 18 844 29

Employees (outstanding remuneration) 18 2,560 3,351

Other debts with Public Administrations 23 1,633 2,172

Current accruals 19 179 129

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 195,910 157,528
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Annual period ended

31 December

Note 2012 2011

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Net sales 22 a) 161,269 159,678

Sales of goods 161,269 159,678

Change in inventories of finished products & work in progress 2,744 (1,992)

Supplies (95,666) (92,480)

Raw materials and consumables used 22 b) (96,054) (92,413)

Work performed by other companies - (67)

Inventory write-down 12 388 -

Other operating income 3,217 5,439

Ancillary and current management income 31 a) 2,060 2,120

Operating grants recognized in profit and loss 22 d) 1,157 3,319

Employee benefit expenses 22 e) (30,601) (31,551)

Wages, salaries and similar remuneration (26,054) (27,072)

Welfare charges (4,547) (4,479)

Other operating income (36,123) (34,365)

External services (35,522) (33,767)

Taxes (332) (419)

Losses, impairment and changes in trade provisions (269) (179)

Amortization, depreciation & impairment charges (3,062) (2,861)

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,778 1,868

Finance revenue 17,283 6,438

Finance expenses (2,169) (1,706)

Impairment and (losses)/gains on disposal of financial instruments 702 88

FINANCE COSTS - NET 24 15,816 4,820

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 17,594 6,688

Income tax 23 3,040 1,016

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 20,634 7,704

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 20,634 7,704



Free translation of the annual accounts originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with “Plan
General de Contabilidad” approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 of 16 November. In the event of discrepancy, the
Spanish version prevails.

LABORATORIOS FARMACÉUTICOS ROVI, S.A.

Statement of Changes in Equity for the annual periods ended 31 December, 2012 and 2011
(Thousands of euros)

4

A) STATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSES (thousands of euros)

Annual period ended

31 December

Note 2012 2011

Profit for the year 16 20,634 7,704

Income and expenses credited or charged directly to the equity 777 1,419

Measurement of financial instruments

- Available-for-sale financial assets 11 (91) 457

Grants, donations and legacies received 17 1,201 1,570

Tax effect 21 (333) (608)

Transfers to profit and loss (1,259) (1,576)

Measurement of financial instruments

- Available-for-sale financial assets 11 & 24 (702) (88)

Grants, donations and legacies received 17 (1,096) (2,163)

Tax effect 21 539 675

TOTAL RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSES 20,152 7,547
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B) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (thousands of euros)

Share capital

(Note 14)

Reserves

(Note 15)

Treasury

shares

(Note 15)

Retained

earnings

(Note 15)

Profit for the

year

(Note 16)

Adjust-

ments for

changes in

value

Grants,

donations &

legacies

received

(Note 17) TOTAL

BALANCE AT END OF 2010 3,000 6,959 (1,960) 48,558 11,758 (2) 8,406 76,719

Adjustments for changes in policies 2010 and prior yrs. - - - - - - - -

Adjustments for errors 2010 and prior years - - - - - - - -

ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF 2011 3,000 6,959 (1,960) 48,558 11,758 (2) 8,406 76,719

Total recognized income and expenses - - - - 7,704 258 (415) 7,547

- Application of profit for 2010 - - - 11,758 (11,758) - - -

- Distribution of dividends - - - (8,604) - - - (8,604)

- Transactions with treasury shares (net) - - 38 (29) - - - 9

Dividends from treasury shares (Note 15.b) - - - 57 - - - 57

BALANCE AT END OF 2011 3,000 6,959 (1,922) 51,740 7,704 256 7,991 75,728
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B) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (thousands of euros)

Share capital

(Note 14)

Reserves

(Note 15)

Treasury

shares

(Note 15)

Retained

earnings

(Note 15)

Profit for the

year

(Note 16)

Adjust-

ments for

changes in

value

Grants,

donations &

legacies

received

(Note 17) TOTAL

BALANCE AT END OF 2011 3,000 6,959 (1,922) 51,740 7,704 256 7,991 75,728
Adjustments for changes in policies 2011 and prior yrs.

- - - - - - - -
Adjustments for errors 2011 and prior years

- - - - - - - -

ADJUSTED BALANCE, BEGINNING OF 2012 3,000 6,959 (1,922) 51,740 7,704 256 7,991 75,728

Total recognized income and expenses - - - - 20,634 (555) 73 20,152

- Application of profit for 2011 - - - 7,704 (7,704) - - -

- Distribution of dividends - - - (6,345) - - - (6,345)

- Transactions with treasury shares (net) - - (138) (212) - - - (350)

Dividends from treasury shares (Note 15.b) - - - 45 - - - 45

BALANCE AT END OF 2012 3,000 6,959 (2,060) 52,932 20,634 (299) 8,064 89,230
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Annual period ended

31 December

Notes 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities 25

Profit before income tax 17,594 6,688

Adjustments to profit 3,847 325

Changes in working capital (8,780) 10,319

Other cash flows from operating activities (2,173) (772)

10,488 16,560

Cash flows from investing activities 26

Payments of investments (*) (36,373) (16,263)

Proceeds on disinvestments 15,613 8,445

(20,760) (7,818)

Cash flows from financing activities 27

Proceeds from and payments of financial liability instruments (2,915) (1,370)
Dividend payments and remuneration of other equity
instruments (6,300) (8,547)

Transactions with treasury shares (350) 9

(9,565) (9,908)

NET INCREASE / DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (19,837) (1,166)

Cash or cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13 28,455 29,621

Cash or cash equivalents at the end of the year (*) 13 8,618 28,455

(*) Additionally, at 31 December, 2011, the Company held current bank deposits maturing at longer than three

months classified as current financial investments (Notes 7 and 10) for an amount of 6,000 thousand euros.

These current bank deposits were fully available.
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1. General information

Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. (hereinafter, ROVI or “the Company”) was incorporated in Madrid on 21

December, 1946 with the corporate purpose of the production and sale of pharmaceutical products in national

territory. Its registered office and tax address are at Calle Julián Camarillo, 35, Madrid, where it also has its main

facilities.

The Company’s principal activity is the research and sale of its own pharmaceutical products and the distribution

of other products for which it holds licences granted by other laboratories for specific periods, in accordance with

the terms and conditions contained in the agreements entered into with said laboratories.

The annual accounts for the year 2012 include the financial statements of the permanent establishment of

Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. in Portugal. This permanent establishment was created on 23 October,

1998. Its corporate purpose is the importation, representation and sale of any kind of chemical or pharmaceutical

product. Its registered office is Jardins da Parede, Rua do Pinhal, Lote 16 in Parede, (Portugal).

Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. is the parent of a consolidated group the consolidated annual accounts of

which for 2012 will be presented under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS-EU). In accordance

with the contents of Royal Decree 1159/2010 of 17 September, the Company prepares consolidated annual

accounts for its group. On 20 February, 2013, the consolidated annual accounts of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos

Rovi, S.A. and subsidiaries at 31 December, 2012 were formulated, showing a profit of 19,514 thousand euros

and equity, including the net profit for the year, of 126,447 thousand euros.

At 31 December, 2012, Inversiones Clidia, S.L. was the owner of 63.840% of the shares of Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. (Note 14) (at 31 December, 2011, it owned 63.594%). The registered office of

Inversiones Clidia, S.L. is located at Julián Camarillo, 35, Madrid and its consolidated annual accounts are

registered in the Companies Register of Madrid.

2. Basis of Presentation

a) True and fair view

The annual accounts have been prepared using the Company’s accounting records and are presented in

accordance with current mercantile legislation and the policies established in the “Plan General de Contabilidad”

(“General Accounting Plan”), approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, subsequently amended by Royal Decree

1159/2010, to present fairly the equity, the financial position and the results of the Company, as well as the

accuracy of the cash flows included in the cash flow statement.

b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the annual accounts requires the Company to use certain estimates and judgements in relation

to the future that are continuously assessed and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events deemed reasonable under the circumstances.
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The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below.

b.1) Revenue recognition

The Company has recognized the total sales of goods marketed in 2012 and 2011 as revenue. The buyer has the

right to return the goods sold. Company Management believes that, based on previous experience with similar

sales, the level of returns will not be very meaningful and, therefore, ROVI considers ordinary revenue recognition

criteria to be met. The Company has therefore recognized ordinary revenue for its sales together with the related

provision against ordinary revenue for estimated returns. If the estimate changes by 1%, changes in revenue will

not be significant.

b.2) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Company Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its property,

plant and equipment. This could significantly change due to technical innovations and actions undertaken by

competitors in response to severe sector cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge when the

useful lives are less than those previously estimated or will write-down or write-off technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. A 20% variation in the estimated useful lives of property, plant

and equipment would mean an increase in the depreciation expense for 2012 and 2011 of approximately 532 and

507 thousand euros, respectively.

b.3) Deferred tax assets

The Company recognizes the deferred tax assets and tax credits when it is likely that they will materialize in lower

income tax payments in the future.

In order to determine the maximum amount that can be recognized by the Company in relation to the future tax

effect of these items, Management recognizes only items where, after analysis, there is certainty as to their

existence and the accuracy of the amount involved.

c) Grouping of items

In order to facilitate an understanding of the statement of financial position, income statement, statement of

changes in equity and statement of cash flows, the items on these statements are presented in groups and the

required analysis is included in the Notes to the annual accounts.
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3. Accounting policies

3.1 Intangible assets

a) Research and development expenses

Research expenditure is recognized as an expense when incurred, while the development costs incurred in a

project are recognized as intangible assets when the following requirements are met:

- the project is viable from a technical and commercial point of view,

- sufficient technical and financial resources are available to complete it,

- the costs incurred can be determined reliably, and

- profits are likely to be generated.

To date, the Company has not capitalized development expenses as it considers that they have not met the

requirements to be recognized as assets. In the development of pharmaceutical products, ROVI considers that

those requirements are met as from the date the drugs have been approved for marketing by the health

authorities.

b) Licences and trademarks

Licenses and trademarks are shown at historical cost. They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less

accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to

allocate the cost of trademarks and licenses over their estimated useful lives.

c) Computer software

Licenses for computer software acquired from third parties are capitalized on the basis of the cost incurred in

acquiring them and preparing the specific program for use. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful

lives (from 4 to 10 years).

Expenses related to software maintenance are recognized as an expense when incurred.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Items included in property, plant and equipment are recognized at purchase price or production cost less

accumulated depreciation, adjusted in accordance with Law 9/1983 of 13 July, promulgated by the Administration.

In addition, the Company applied the balance sheet restatement at 31 December, 1996, in accordance with Royal

Decree Law 7/1996 of 7 June.

The costs of expansion, modernization or improvement of items included in property, plant and equipment are

included in the asset as an increase in its value only when they represent an increase in its capacity, productivity

or useful life, provided it is possible to know or estimate the carrying amounts of the elements that have been

derecognized in the inventory because they have been replaced.
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Major repair costs are capitalized and are depreciated over their useful lives, while recurring maintenance

expenses are recognized in profit and loss in the year they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, except for land, which is not depreciated, is calculated

systematically using the straight-line method in accordance with the estimated useful lives, taking into account the

actual impairment suffered as a result of the use and enjoyment of the items.

The estimated useful lives are:

Buildings - 40 years

Technical facilities and machinery – between 4 and 14 years

Other facilities, fittings and equipment and furniture – between 5 and 10 years

Other property, plant and equipment– between 4 and 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and, if appropriate, adjusted at the end of the reporting

period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized

in profit and loss.

3.3 Impairment losses on non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.

Assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by

which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an

asset’s fair value less costs to sell or its value in use, whichever is higher. For the purposes of assessing

impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-

generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that have suffered impairment are reviewed at the end

of each reporting period to see whether the impairment has been reversed.

3.4 Financial assets

a) Loans and receivables: Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable payments that are not listed on an active market. They are included in current assets, except

for maturities at more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-

current assets. Loans and other receivables are included in “Credits to companies” and “Trade and other

receivables” on the statement of financial position.

Bank deposits maturing at more than 90 days and less than 12 months are included in this category.
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These financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, including transaction costs directly attributable

to them, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, recognizing the interest accrued in accordance

with the effective interest rate, defined as the discount rate that equals the carrying amount of the

instrument to the totality of its estimated cash flows until maturity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, credits for

trading operations maturing at more than one year are valued, both upon initial recognition and

subsequently, at their face value, provided that the effect of not discounting the flows is not significant.

At least at the end of the reporting period, the valuation adjustments required due to impairment will be

made if there is objective evidence that not all the amounts outstanding will be received.

The amount of the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the

present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at an effective interest rate upon initial

recognition. Impairment losses and, if applicable, the reversal thereof are recognized in profit and loss.

b) Held-to-maturity investments: Held-to-maturity financial assets are securities representing debt with fixed

or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are listed on an active market and that company

Management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the Company were to sell other

than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be reclassified

as available for sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for those

with maturities at less than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as current

assets.

The valuation criteria for these investments are the same as for loans and receivables.

c) Investments in the equity of group, multi-group and associated companies: These are valued at cost less,

if applicable, the accumulated amount of the impairment losses. Notwithstanding, when there is an

investment prior to the classification as a group, multi-group or associated company, the carrying amount

before being thus classified is deemed to be the investment cost. Previous value adjustments recorded

directly in the equity remain there until they are derecognized.

If there is objective evidence that the carrying amount is not recoverable, the applicable value adjustments

will be made for the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, defined as the

higher of the fair value less sale costs and the present value of the cash flows derived from the investment.

Unless there is other evidence of the recoverable amount, when estimating the impairment of these

investments, the equity of the investee adjusted by any tacit capital gains that may exist at the valuation

date, will be used. The value adjustment and, if applicable, the reversal thereof, will be recognized in profit

and loss in the year in which it takes place.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets: This category includes securities representing debt and equity

instruments not classified in any of the preceding categories. They are include in non-current assets unless

Management intends to dispose of the investment within the 12 months after the end of the reporting

period.
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They are valued at fair value, recognizing any changes that take place directly in the equity until the asset

is disposed of or impaired, when the losses and gains accumulated in the equity are taken to profit and

loss, provided it is possible to determine the aforementioned fair value. Otherwise, they are recognized at

cost less impairment losses.

For available-for-sale financial assets, valuation adjustments are made if there is objective evidence that

they have been impaired as the result of a reduction or delay in the estimated future cash flows in the case

of debt instruments acquired or the non-recoverability of the carrying amount of the asset in the case of

investments in equity instruments. The valuation adjustment is the difference between the cost or

amortized cost less, if applicable, any valuation adjustment previously recognized in profit and loss and the

fair value at the time the valuation is made. In the case of equity instruments measured at cost because it

is not possible to determine their fair value, the valuation adjustment is determined in the same way as for

investments in the equity of group, multi-group and associated companies.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the Company recognizes the accumulated losses from a

decrease in the fair value which were previously recognized in the equity in profit and loss. Impairment

losses on equity instruments recognized in profit and loss are not reversed through profit and loss.

The fair values of listed investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is

not active (and for unlisted securities), the Company fixes a fair value using measurement techniques that

include the use of recent transactions between interested and duly-informed parties, references to other

instruments that are substantially the same, methods employing the discount of estimated future cash

flows and option price-fixing methods, making maximum use of data observable in the market and placing

as little confidence as possible in the Company’s subjective considerations.

Financial assets are derecognized in the statement of financial position when all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset are substantially transferred. In the specific case of receivables, this is deemed to

take place, in general, when the risks of default and delinquency are transferred.

3.5 Inventories

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When the net realizable value of the

inventories is lower than their cost, the applicable valuation adjustments will be made, recognizing them as an

expense in profit and loss. If the circumstances that cause the valuation adjustment cease to exist, the amount of

the adjustment is reversed and recognized as income in profit and loss.

Cost is determined using the weighted average price method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress

comprises design, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on

normal operating capacity). Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,

less applicable variable selling expenses and, in the case of raw materials and work in progress, the costs

estimated necessary to complete their production.

3.6 Equity

Share capital is represented by ordinary shares.
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The costs of issuing new shares or options are recognized directly in equity as a reduction in the reserves.

When treasury shares are purchased, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs

(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders until the shares are

cancelled, reissued or resold. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received,

net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs, is included in equity.

3.7 Financial liabilities

a) Debits and payables

This category includes trade and non-trade debits. These debits are classified as current liabilities unless the

Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after end of the

reporting period.

These debits are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs directly incurred, and are subsequently

stated at amortized cost applying the effective interest rate method. This effective interest is the discount rate that

makes the carrying amount of the instrument equal to the expected flow of future payments forecast until maturity

of the liability.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, trade debits maturing at no more than one year that do not have a contractual

interest rate are measured, both initially and subsequently, at their face value when the effect of not discounting

the cash flows is not significant.

b) Financial liabilities held for trading and other fair-value financial liabilities with changes in profit and loss

Fair-value financial liabilities with changes in profit and loss are those held for trading that are issued with the

intention of reacquiring them in the short term or those that form part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments managed overall to obtain short-term gains, together with financial liabilities that the Company

designates to be included in this category upon initial recognition because this provides more relevant

information.

These financial liabilities are valued, both initially and in subsequent assessments, at their fair value, recognizing

any changes in profit and loss for the year. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue are recognized in

profit and loss for the year in which they take place.

3.9 Grants received

Reimbursable grants are recognized as liabilities until they meet the conditions not to be considered

reimbursable, while non-reimbursable grants are recognized as income directly in the equity on a systematic and

rational basis, in correlation with the expenses derived from the grant.

For these purposes, a grant is considered non-reimbursable when there is an individual decision to award the

grant, all the conditions fixed for awarding it have been met and there is no reasonable doubt that it will be

received.
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Monetary grants are recognized at the fair value of the amount awarded and non-monetary grants at the fair value

of the item received. In both cases, the values refer to the time of recognition.

Non-reimbursable grants related to the acquisition of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and real

estate investments are allocated as income for the year in proportion to the amortization or depreciation of the

related assets or, if applicable, when the assets are disposed of, there is value adjustment for impairment or they

are derecognized in the statement of financial position. Non-reimbursable grants related to specific expenses are

recognized in profit and loss in the same year as the related expenses are accrued, while those awarded to offset

an operating deficit are recognized in the year in which they are granted, except when they are intended to offset

operating deficits in future years, in which case they will be allocated to the year in question.

3.9 Current and deferred taxes

The income tax charged (credited) is the amount accrued in the year for this item comprising both current and

deferred income tax charged (credited).

Both the current and deferred income tax charged (credited) is recognized in profit and loss. Notwithstanding, the

tax effect related to items recorded directly in the equity is recognized in the equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities will be measured at the amounts it is expected to pay to or recover from

the tax authorities in accordance with current legislation or legislation that has been approved but not yet

published at the year end.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. However, deferred income tax is not recognized if it

arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor tax profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using

the rules and tax rates that have been approved or are on the point of approval at the end of the reporting period

and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

3.10 Employee benefits

a) Pension commitments

The Company holds a defined-contribution plan exclusively on behalf of certain employees.

A defined-contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate

entity. The Group has no legal, contractual or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does

not hold sufficient assets to pay all the commitments assumed.
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For defined-contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to privately- or publicly-managed pension

insurance plans on an obligatory, contractual or voluntary basis. Once the contributions have been paid, the

Company is not obliged to make any further payments. The contributions are recognized as employee benefits

when accrued. Contributions paid in advance are recognized as an asset to the extent to which a cash refund or

reduction in future payments is available.

The Company recognizes a liability for contributions to be made when, at the end of the reporting period,

contributions have accrued but not been settled.

b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement

date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company

recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment of

current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination

benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12

months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

3.11 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognized when the group has

a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will

be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise

lease termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for future

operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation

using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to

the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as a finance expense as

accrued.

Provisions maturing at one year or less with an insignificant financial effect are not discounted.

When part of the expenditure necessary to settle the provision is reimbursed by a third party, the reimbursement

is recognized as a separate asset, provided it is almost certain to be received.

Contingent liabilities are the possible obligations arising from past events the materialization of which depends on

whether one or more future events take place irrespective of the Company’s wishes. These contingent liabilities

are not recognized but details are set forth in the Notes (Note 28).

3.12 Business combinations

Transactions of merger, spin-off or non-monetary contribution of a business between group companies are

recorded applying the rules for transactions with related parties (Note 3.16).
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Other merger, spin-off or non-monetary contribution transactions and business combinations arising from the

acquisition of all the assets and liabilities of a company or a part of a company that comprises one or more

businesses are recognized applying the acquisition method.

For business combinations resulting from the acquisition of shares in the capital of a company, the Company

recognizes the investment in accordance with the rules for investments in the equity of group, multi-group and

associated companies (Note 3.4.c).

3.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods, rendering of

services and other revenue received in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of

returns, rebates, discounts and value-added tax.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that

future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities as

described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies

relating to the sale have been resolved. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into

consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

a) Sales of goods

The Company sells pharmaceutical products in the wholesale market and also to retailers for whom it holds a

manufacturing and sales license. It also acquires and sells pharmaceutical products of other entities.

Sales of goods are recognized when the Company has delivered products to the customer and there is no

unfulfilled obligation which could affect the acceptance of the products by the customer. The sale does not take

place until the products and the obsolescence and loss risks have been transferred to the customer, the customer

has accepted the products in accordance with the sale contract and the acceptance period has finished, or there

is objective evidence for the Group that the necessary criteria have been met for the customer acceptance.

The products are sold with volume discounts and the customers are entitled to return damaged products. The

sales are recognized at the price fixed in the sale contract, net of volume discounts and returns estimated at the

date of sale. Volume discounts are measured based on estimated annual purchases. Returns are not significant

and they are measured based on the Group’s historical experience (Note 2). Sales are carried out with short-term

collection periods. ROVI’s practice is generally to claim late-payment interest -calculated on the basis of the

actual collection period- from official entities from which receivables are not collected in the short term.

b) Interest income

Interest income is recognized in accordance with the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the

Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, discounting the estimated future cash flow at

the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as less interest income.

Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
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c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in profit and loss when the right to receive payment is established.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the dividends distributed come from profits generated before the acquisition

date, they are not recognized as income and are shown as a decrease in the carrying amount of the investment.

d) Other revenues: granting of exclusive distribution licenses

The revenue received from the granting of exclusive distribution licenses for ROVI products to other companies is

recognized on accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the corresponding contracts.

To date the Company has granted third parties some exclusive licenses to sell its products in a specific territory.

Under these agreements, ROVI has received a single amount for transfer of license, with no refund obligation, or

the possibility of refund under very restrictive terms, when the product has been authorized for distribution in a

given territory.

In addition, the Company undertakes, for the term of the contract, to sell the products under contract to the

distributor at the prices agreed in the contract. The amount received on the transfer of the license is recorded as

“revenues” on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract. The non-accrued portion is recorded as non-

current liability if it is recognized in revenues for a period longer than a year.

3.14 Leases

a) When the Company is the lessee – Finance leases

The Company leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the

Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases

are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present

value of the minimum lease payments. To calculate the present value, the implicit interest rate of the agreement is

used and, if this cannot be determined, the Company’s interest rate for similar transactions.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant interest

rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges, are

included in other payables. The interest element of the finance cost is recognized in profit and loss over the lease

period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period. Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful

life of the asset or the lease term.

When the lease includes buildings and land, the portion of the lease relating to the land is classified as an

operating lease if the contract does not include a land purchase option at substantially lower prices than its fair

value estimated on the date of executing the option.
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b) When the Company is the lessee – Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the

lessor) are recognized in profit and loss in the year in which they accrue on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.

3.15 Foreign currency transactions

a) Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s annual accounts are presented in thousands of euros. The euro is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at

the dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions

and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognized in profit and loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and

qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency and classified as available for

sale are analyzed considering the translation differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the

security and other changes in its carrying amount. Translation differences relating to variations in the amortized

cost are recognized in profit and loss and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity instruments held at fair value with changes in profit

and loss are presented as part of the gain or loss in the fair value. Translation differences on non-monetary items

such as equity instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets are included in the equity.

3.16 Related-party transactions

In general, transactions between group companies are initially recognized at fair value. When applicable, if the

agreed price differs from the fair value, the difference is recorded in accordance with the actual economic value of

the transaction. Subsequent recognition is in accordance with the provisions of the applicable rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in transactions of merger, spin-off or non-monetary contribution of a business, the

elements that form the business acquired are measured at the amount that corresponds to them, once the

transaction has been performed, in the consolidated annual accounts of the group or subgroup.

When the parent company of the group or subgroup and its subsidiary is not involved, the consolidated annual

accounts to be considered in this respect will be those of the largest group or subgroup of which the assets and

liabiltiies form part the parent company of which is Spanish.
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In these cases, any difference that may arise between the net value of the assets and liabilities of the company

acquired, adjusted by the balance of the groups of grants, donations and legacies received and adjustments for

changes in value, and any amount of capital and/or share premium, if applicable, are recorded in reserves by the

absorbing company.

3.17 Health tax

As the result of the 2005 General State Budget Act (Law 2/2004 of 27 December), Additional Provision 48, a

health tax, imposed by Ministry of Health, came into force on 1 January, 2005. This tax applies to individuals and

legal entities in Spain engaging in the manufacture and importation of medicines that are prescribed in Spanish

territory on official National Health Service prescriptions. The amounts payable to the Ministry of Health and

Consumer Affairs are calculated on a scale fixed by the aforementioned Additional Provision 48 and subsequently

modified by Additional Provision 6 of Law 29/2006 of 29 July, on Guarantees and Rational Use of Drugs and

Healthcare Products. The Group records the accrued health tax as a sales discount. There is a provision for the

estimate of amount accrued but unpaid in the last four months of the year and the possible adaptation of the tax

to the actual sales for the year.

During 2010, the Spanish government approved a reduction of the pharmaceutical expenditure of 2,800 million

euros through the introduction of two pieces of pricing legislation. The first one was approved in March 2010 and

was focused on generic products. With regard to these products, which are those out of patent, the reduction was

25% on average applied to the selling price to laboratories. The second package, which was approved in May

2010 and applied as from June 2010, addressed pharmaceutical products under patent. A discount of 7.5% was

applied to the selling price to the public for these products. The impact of the measures approved in March has

been minimal for ROVI because the majority of its products are under patent. However, the impact of the May

measure has been significant, principally affecting the pharmaceutical product area. The Company has

recognized the amounts relating to these measures as a decrease in sales.

In July 2011, the Spanish government announced a new package of measures to reduce pharmaceutical

expenditure. The impact of these new measures, which came into force in November 2011, has not been

significant for the Company.

4. Financial Risk Management

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate

risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s global risk management program focuses on the

unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s Treasury Department, which, following policies approved by

the Board of Directors, identifies, assesses and hedges financial risks. This Department identifies, assesses and

hedges the financial risks in close collaboration with the Company’s operating units. The Audit Committee

analyzes policies for global risk management, as well as for specific areas, such as interest rate risk, liquidity risk

and the investment of excess liquidity. The Company does not use derivatives to hedge financial risks.
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a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is very low as (i) virtually all the Company’s assets and liabilities are in euros; (ii) the

majority of the transactions with foreign parties are carried out in euros; and (iii) transactions for a significant

amount in currencies other than the euro are sometimes hedged with exchange rate insurance contracts.

At 31 December, 2012, there were available-for-sale financial assets for 3,279 thousand dollars (6,531 thousand

dollars at 31 December, 2011). Had the euro/dollar exchange rate at the end of the reporting period been 10%

higher or lower, these assets denominated in dollars would have been 226 thousand euros lower or 276 thousand

euros higher, respectively (459 and 561 thousand euros, respectively, in 2011).

(ii) Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk for equity securities because of investments held by the Company and

classified on the statement of financial positon as available for sale or at fair value with changes in profit and loss.

The Company is not exposed to price risk on quoted raw materials. To manage its price risk arising from

investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the limits set. The

Company does not use derivatives to hedge price risk.

Had the listed price of equity securities at 31 December, 2012 been 10% higher or lower, the reserve for

available-for-sale investments would have increased or decreased by 2,808 thousand euros (505 thousand euros

at 31 December, 2011).

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk in respect of cash flows on long-term borrowing transactions at

variable rates. The risk, however, is slight since most of ROVI’s debt consists of reimbursable advances from

government entities on which there is no interest rate risk. Fixed-interest borrowings expose the Company to fair

value interest rate risk. ROVI’s policy is to keep most of its borrowings in the form of debt with government

entities.

Had interest rates on financial debt at variable rates been 1% higher or lower at 31 December 2012, with all other

variables remaining constant, the gain/loss, after taxes for the year, would have been 44 thousand euros higher or

lower, respectively, owing to the difference in interest expense on loans at variable rates (66 thousand euros at 31

December, 2011).

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on by group. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial

instruments, deposits with banks and financial institutions, receivables classified as available for sale and trade

receivables.

The banks and financial institutions with which the Company works generally have independent ratings.
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If customers have been independently rated, such ratings are used. If this is not the case, then the Company

assesses the risk on the basis of the customer’s financial position, historical experience and a series of other

factors. In those cases in which there is no doubt as to the customer’s financial solvency, the Company elects not

to set credit limits.

At 31 December, 2012, the greatest investment in financial assets, apart from trade receivables, was related to

BNP, 28,141 thousand euros at 31 December, 2012 (14,615 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011). A significant

proportion of trade and other receivables relates to accounts receivable from government entities on which, in

view of their nature, according to the information currently available, Management considers there to be no credit

risk

In the years for which information is presented, credit limits were not exceeded and Management does not expect

losses due to default by any of the aforementioned counterparties.

c) Liquidity risk

Management monitors the liquidity estimates of the Company in accordance with the expected cash flows. ROVI

maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements. At 31 December, 2012 and

2011, the Company did not hold any credit lines.

The following table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities grouped by maturity dates based on the periods

outstanding at the end of the reporting period through to the maturity date stipulated in the contract, including the

related interest. The amounts shown on the table correspond to cash flows stipulated in the contract, which have

not been discounted. Given that these amounts have not been discounted and that they include future interest

accruals, they cannot be matched with figures on the statement of financial position for borrowings, derivative

instruments and trade and other payables.

Thousands of euros

Less than Between Between More than

At 31 December, 2012 one year 1 & 2 years 2 & 5 years 5 years

Bank borrowings 1,678 1,039 233 -

Debt with government entities 3,453 6,848 9,990 11,820

Trade and other payables 67,158 - - -

72,289 7,887 10,223 11,820

Less than Between Between More than

At 31 December, 2011 one year 1 & 2 years 2 & 5 years 5 years

Bank borrowings 2,118 2,509 646 -

Debt with government entities 3,314 5,930 9,514 14,711

Trade and other payables 39,392 - - -

44,824 8,439 10,160 14,711
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4.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as held-for-sale and available-for-sale

securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for

financial assets is the current bid price.

The fair value of the reimbursable advances without a rate of interest or with a subsidized rate of interest is

determined by applying the interest rate curve in force at the date of receipt of the advance to the reimbursements

to be made, adding the spread normally applied in loans to the Company. For financial reporting purposes, fair

value is calculated at each year end by applying the interest rate curve then in force to the outstanding payments

and adding the corresponding spread. For loans at variable rates of interest, fair value has been regarded as

coinciding with the amount for which they are recognized.

5. Intangible assets

Details of the items included in “Intangible assets” and the movement on these items are as follows:

Patents,

licences and

trademarks

Computer

software Total

Balance at 1.1.2011

Cost 801 1,497 2,298

Accumulated amortization (741) (133) (874)

Carrying amount 60 1,364 1,424

Additions 68 627 695

Amortization charge (21) (308) (329)

Balance at 31.12.2011

Cost 869 2,124 2,993

Accumulated amortization (762) (441) (1,203)

Carrying amount 107 1,683 1,790

Additions 231 361 592

Amortization charge (32) (371) (403)

Balance at 31.12.2012

Cost 1,100 2,485 3,585

Accumulated amortization (794) (812) (1,606)

Carrying amount 306 1,673 1,979

a) Patents, licences and trademarks

The patents, licenses and trademarks caption includes principally the amounts paid for acquisition of the

trademark Biolid and the associated health registrations, totalling 601 thousand euros. This trademark was

purchased from another laboratory in January 2002.
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b) Fully amortized intangible assets

At 31 December, 2011, there were fully-amortized intangible assets that were still in use with a carrying cost of

733 thousand euros (705 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011).

c) Assets affected by guarantees and ownership restrictions

At 31 December, 2012 and 2011, there were no significant intangible assets subject to ownership restrictions or

pledged to guarantee liabilities.

d) Insurance

The Company has insurance policies to cover the risks the intangible assets are exposed to. The insurance cover

is considered sufficient.

6. Property, plant and equipment

Details of and movement on the items included in property, plant and equipment were as follows:

Balance at 1.1.2010 Land and buildings

Technical

installations and

other property, plant

and equipment TOTAL

Cost 8,409 21,220 29,629

Accumulated amortization (1,125) (5,376) (6,501)

Carrying amount 7,284 15,844 23,128

Additions - 3,003 3,003

Retirements (1,114) - (1,114)

Eliminations from amortization 1,114 - 1,114

Amortization charge (322) (2,210) (2,532)

Balance at 31.12.2011

Cost 7,295 24,223 31,518

Accumulated amortization (333) (7,586) (7,919)

Carrying amount 6,962 16,637 23,599

Additions - 3,871 3,871

Amortization charge (136) (2,523) (2,659)

Balance at 31.12.2012

Cost 7,295 28,094 35,389

Accumulated amortization (469) (10,109) (10,578)

Carrying amount 6,826 17,985 24,811



Free translation of the annual accounts originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with “Plan
General de Contabilidad” approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 of 16 November. In the event of discrepancy, the
Spanish version prevails.

LABORATORIOS FARMACÉUTICOS ROVI, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accounts for the year 2012
(Thousands of euros)

25

a) Impairment losses

In the years 2012 and 2011, no signficiant impairment losses were either recognized or reversed in relation to any

individual element of property, plant and equipment.

b) Fully-depreciated assets

At 31 December, 2012, there were technical facilities and other property plant and equipment with an original cost

of 2,965 thousand euros (2,323 thousand euros in 2011) that were fully depreciated and still in use.

c) Finance leases

At 1 January, 2011, the “Land and buildings” caption included buildings leased under finance leases for a

carrying amount of 186 thousand euros. These assets, which had been fully depreciated at the end of the 2011

reporting period and which had an acquisition cost of 1,114 thousand euros, were derecognized in the

Company’s property, plant and equipment at 31 December, 2011. Since said date, the leases on these buildings

have been considered operating leases.

d) Operating leases

The income statement includes expensses incurred in operating leases for the leasing of transport elements and

buildings for an amount of 1,624 thousand euros. In 2011, the amount included principally the leasing of transport

elements (1,146 thousand euros).

e) Grants received

The construction of the Granada plant was partly financed by a grant awarded by the Innovation and

Development Agency of Andalusia (Innovation, Science and Enterprises Department) for an amount of 5,431

thousand euros (Note 17). This grant was received in November 2008 and the part that has not yet been

allocated to the income statement is recognized under the heading “Grants, donations and legacies received”.

This grant began to be allocated to the income statement in the second half of 2009, when depreciation of the

assets for which it was granted commenced.

Also for the construction of the Granada plant, the Company received a non-reimbursable grant of 2,200

thousand euros in 2010, granted by the Innovation, Science and Enterprise Department of the Andalusian

Regional Government. This grant began to be allocated to the income statement on 1 January, 2010 and the

amount recognized under the caption “Grants, donations and legacies received” at 31 December, 2012 was 1,784

thousand euros (1,923 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011). This grant had not yet been collected at 31

December, 2012.

f) Insurance

The Company has insurance policies to cover the risks the property, plant and equipment is exposed to. The

insurance cover is considered sufficient.
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7. Analysis of financial instruments

7.1 Analysis by category

The carrying amounts of each one of the financial instrument categories established in the “Financial instruments”

accounting policy, except investments in the equity of group, multi-group and associated companies (Note 8),

were as follows:

a) Financial assets

Thousands of euros

31 December, 2012 31 December, 2011

Available-for-

sale financial

assets

(Note 11)

Loans and

receivables

(Note 10)

Available-for-

sale financial

assets

(Note 11)

Loans and

receivables

(Note 10)

Equity instruments 28,141 - 5,110 -

Other financial assets - 1,221 - 1,370

Non-current 28,141 1,221 5,110 1,370

Other financial assets - 84,708 - 62,043

Current - 84,708 - 62,043

TOTAL 28,141 85,929 5,110 63,413

b) Financial liabilities

Thousands of euros

Debits and payables

(Note 18)

31 December,

2012

31 December,

2011

Bank borrowings 1,213 2,840

Other financial liabilities 22,951 23,709

Non-current 24,164 26,549

Bank borrowings 1,600 1,959

Other financial liabilities 3,453 3,314

Current 5,053 5,273

TOTAL 29,217 31,822
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7.2 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets which have not yet matured and which have suffered no impairment loss can

be assessed based on the credit rating assigned by external organizations or by their historical delinquency rates:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Note 13) 2012 2011

AA - 4,690

AA- - 22,237

A+ 63 1,141

BBB+ - 127

BBB 5,661 -

BBB- 2,309 13

Baa1 - 28

Baa3 - 5

BB+ 98 -

BB 136 -

Ba3 209 -

No rating 142 214

Total 8,618 28,455

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Note 10) 2012 2011

AA - 181

A+ - 1,014

AA- - 144

BBB 1,188 -

Other 33 31

Total 1,221 1,370

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Note 10) 2012 2011

BBB+ - 6,000

Total - 6,000

None of the assets classified as available for sale has received a financial rating. Note 10 “Loans and receivables”

gives details of the credit quality of the balances receivable from public authorities.
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8. Holdings in Group companies

The companies in which Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. held a significant shareholding at 31 December,

2012 were:

Portion of capital Voting rights

Company Name Registered Office Activity % Direct

%

Indirect % Direct

%

Indirect

Pan Química
Farmacéutica, S.A.

Madrid, C/Rufino González, 50 (1) 100% - 100% -

Gineladius, S.L. Madrid, C/Rufino González, 50 (2) 100% - 100% -

Rovi Contract
Manufacturing, S.L.

Madrid, C/Julián Camarillo, 35 (1) 100% - 100% -

Bemipharma
Manufacturing, S.L.

Madrid, C/Julián Camarillo, 35 (1) 100% - 100% -

Bertex Pharma GmbH Inselstr.17. 14129 Berlin
(Germany)

(3) 100% - 100% -

Frosst Ibérica, S.A. Alcalá de Henares, Avenida
Complutense, 140 (Madrid)

(1) 100% - 100% -

(1) Production, marketing and sale of pharmaceutical, healthcare and medicine products.

(2) Import-export, purchase, sale, distribution and marketing of articles related to integral female healthcare.

(3) Development, distribution and marketing of pharmaceutical products related to micro-particle technologies.

Unless otherwise stated, the end of the reporting period for the latest annual accounts is 31 December, 2012.

On 23 February, 2012, the effective sale of 50% of the ehares in the company Alentia Biotech, S.L. by

Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. to to Grupo Ferrer Internacional, S.A. took place and Alentia became a

joint venture held by these two companies at 50% each. Before this sale, Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A.

had held 100% of the shares in Alentia Biotech, S.L. The sale took place after approval of the transaction by the

National Competition Commission on 21 December, 2011.
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The statement of financial position of the company at the time of the sale was as follows:

Thousands of

euros

Trade and other receivables 483

Cash and cash equivalents 10,278

Current assets 10,761

TOTAL ASSETS 10,761

Equity (157)

Non-current financial debt 6,926

Non-current deferred revenues 3,907

Non-current liabilities 10,833

Trade and other payables 85

Current liabilities 85

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,761

At 31 December, 2012 and 2011, none of the Group companies in which the Company held a stake was listed on

the Stock Exchange.

The amounts of the capital, reserves, profit or loss for the year and other relevant information, as shown in the

annual accounts of the individual companies at 31 December, 2012, were as follows:

%

Direct holding

Carrying

amount of

holding Capital Reserves

Profit or loss

for period

Total

equity

Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L. 100% 1,772 36 14,124 4,263 18,423

Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L. 100% 559 36 2,971 41 3,048

Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A. 100% 1,771 601 1,252 (24) 1,829

Gineladius, S.L. 100% 293 30 597 (2) 625

Bertex Pharma GmbH 100% 786 25 97 (5) 117

Frosst Ibérica, S.A.U. 100% 5,039 7,816 14,034 11,061 32,911

10,220
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At 31 December, 2011, the figures were the following:

%

Direct holding

Carrying

amount of

holding Capital Reserves

Profit or loss

for period

Total

equity

Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L. 100% 1,772 36 14,124 3,495 17,655

Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L. 100% 559 36 2,971 14 3,021

Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A. 100% 1,771 601 1,283 (31) 1,853

Gineladius, S.L. 100% 293 30 626 (29) 627

Bertex Pharma GmbH 100% 786 25 101 (4) 122

Alentia Biotech, S.L. 100% 7 3 1 (80) (76)

Frosst Ibérica, S.A.U. 100% 5,039 7,816 14,034 12,912 34,762

10,227

There are no companies in which, with a holding of less than 20%, a significant influence is deemed to exist, or in

which, with a holding of more than 20%, it is deemed that no significant influence exists.

There are no investments in group companies the value of which it has been necessary to adjust due to

impairment.

9. Interests in joint ventures

In 2010, the company Alentia Biotech, S.L. (Alentia) was created, 100% held by Laboratorios Farmacéuticos

Rovi, S.A. In February 2012, the effective sale of 50% of the shares in Alentia Biotech, S.L. by Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. to Grupo Ferrer Internacional, S.A. took place and Alentia became a joint venture held

by these two companies at 50% each. The carrying amount of this interest in Rovi was 3 thousand euros at 31

December, 2012.

Alentia plans to construct a manufacturing plant in Granada for production of flu vaccines in the Spanish market.

On 26 September, 2011, Alentia announced that it had signed an agreement with Novartis Vaccines &

Diagnostics for the transfer and granting of a licence of use for technology, belonging to the latter, for the

production of vaccines against seasonal and pandemic flu, mainly for Spain and Portugal.

Through these agreements, Alentia Biotech will commence construction of a production plant in Granada that will

require an estimated investment of approximately 92 million euros.

The production plant will have an annual manufacturing capacity of 10 million doses of seasonal flu vaccine and

30 million doses of pandemic flu vaccine.

Likewise, during the construction of the production plant, Alentia Biotech is entitled to market seasonal flu

vaccines under a co-marketing regime with Novartis Vaccines & Diagnostics for an estimated period of

approximately five years. In 2012 Alentia has started to market these vaccines.
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Once the production plant comes into operation, Alentia Biotech and Novartis Vaccines and Diagnostics will

market the vaccines manufactured at said production plant through a commercial joint venture.

This strategic agreement falls within the spirit of the Protocol signed by ROVI on 30 June, 2009 with the Ministry

of Health and Social Policy and the Andalusian Regional Government’s Departments of Innovation, Science and

Enterprises and of Health for research into new technologies and the production of flu vaccines, which envisaged

the construction of a national production centre for seasonal and pandemic flu vaccines to supply the entire

Spanish population.

The project would be implemented with the collaboration of the Department of Economy, Innovation and Science

of the Regional Government of Andalusia and the Ministry of Health, Social Policy and Equality of the Spanish

Government and likewise has the backing of the Ministry of Science and Innovation.

The Ministry of Health and Social Policy supported this project by granting a repayable loan to Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. of 11,900 thousand euros in 2009 (11,000 for the 2009 annual instalment and 900

thousand euros relating to the 2010 annual instalment)

In 2012, Alentia recorded losses of 721 thousand euros and the value of its assets at 31 December, 2012 was

12,874 thousand euros.

10. Loans and receivables

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Non-current loans and receivables

- Deposits (a) 1,055 1,014

- Bank receivables (b) 65 248

- Interest accrued 68 77

- Guarantee deposits 33 31

1,221 1,370

Current loans and receivables:

- Loans to associated companies (Note 31.f) 2 2

- Trade receivables (c) 29,127 48,493

- Receivables from related parties (Note 31.f) 55,444 6,934

- Sundry debtors 50 512

- Bank deposits (a) - 6,000

- Employees 85 102

84,708 62,043

85,929 63,413
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a) Deposits

At 31 December, 2012, the non-current deposits include fixed-term deposits at an interest rate ranging from 2 to 3%

pledged in favour of Banesto in relation to surety arrangements granted to the Company by this bank. At 31

December, 2011, the non-current deposits include fixed-term deposits at an interest rate ranging from 2 to 3%

pledged in favour of BBVA in relation to surety arrangements granted to the Company by this bank.

“Current loans and receivables” at 31 December, 2011 included 6,000 thousand euros relating to current bank

deposits. The associated interest was is 3.00%. This amount was recognized under the heading “Current financial

investments” in the statement of financial position.

b) Non-current bank receivables

The amount included in “Non-current bank receivables” relates primarily to the payments made to Banco Santander

under a debt assumption agreements whereby this bank assumed the payment of a reimbursable advance granted

to the Company by government entities (Note 18.b). In 2011, several of these reimbursable advances were

cancelled, since notifications were received from the government entities that granted them releasing the

Company from the debt, which was fully assumed by the financial institutitions with which the debt assumption

agreements had been signed. Derecognition of these financial liabilities meant the derecognition of non-current

financial receivables for a total amount of 1,291 thousand euros.

In addition, in 2011, the Company entered into a new debt assumption agreement with Banco Santander. The

amount paid by the Company was 65 thousand euros, while the advance assumed has a face value of 83

thousand euros.

The amounts delivered under these debt assumption agreements are considered a non-current financial asset until

said reimbursable advances, which are recorded under the financial debt caption in liabilities in the statement of

financial position (see Note 18.b), are cancelled.

The average interest rate accrued on these assets is 3.4%.

c) Trade receivables

Management estimates that the fair values of loans and receivables do not differ significantly from their current

values, since they comprise principally balances receivable at less than one year and are subject to possible interest

charges if they are not paid within said period.
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At 31 December, 2012, the debt receivable from public authorities was 13,926 thousand euros (24,925 thousand

euros at 31 December, 2011), geographically distributed as follows:

Thousands of euros

Rating 2012 Rating 2011

Andalusia BBB 4,201 A+ 6,464

Madrid BBB 2,531 AA- 3,229

Catalonia BBB- 1,560 A- 1,169

Portugal BB+ 1,295 BB+ 1,865

Valencia BB 1,192 BBB- 2,804

Castilla la Mancha BBB- 607 BBB+ 1,641

Canary Islands BBB 583 A+ 803

Galicia BBB- 526 A 1,370

Basque Country BBB+ 304 AA 1,830

Aragón BBB- 263 A 813

Murcia BBB - A 1,345

Castilla y León Baa3 - A2 798

Other - 864 - 794

13,926 24,925

In 2012, the Company received a total of 13.5 millon euros from the Spanish public authorities settling invoices

outstanding with the Autonomous Regions that had matured at 31 December, 2011. These amounts were

received within the “Supplier Scheme” that the Government brought into operation in February 2012.

At 31 December, 2012, there were matured receivables amounting to 14,265 euros (28,994 thousand euros at 31

December, 2011), although they had suffered no impairment. Of this amount, almost the entire debt aged over six

months related to Social Security authorities or government entities. The Company’s normal practice is to claim

late-payment interest in accordance with the actual payment period from those government enttiies from which

collection does not take place in the short term.

The ageing analysis of balances due for payment is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Up to 3 months 6,876 10,060

4 to 6 months 2,816 5,176

6 months to one year 1,696 5,623

Over one year 2,877 8,135

14,265 28,994
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The total matured debt with government entities at 31 December, 2012 was 9,707 thousand euros (20,889 thousand

euros at 31 December, 2011), geographically distributed as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Spain 8,735 19,305

Portugal 972 1,584

9,707 20,889

At 31 December, 2012, the impairment of receivables increased by 269 thousand euros in comparison with 2011.

The amount of the provision was 1,258 thousand euros at 31 December, 2012 (989 thousand euros at 31

December, 2011). The ageing of these accounts is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

6 to 9 months 149 268

Over 9 months 1,109 721

1,258 989

Movement on the provision for impairment of trade receivables was as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year 989 734

Provision 269 255

Balance at end of year 1,258 989

Recognition and reversal of adjustments to the carrying amounts of trade receivables due to impairment are

included in “Losses, impairment and change in trade provisions” in the Income Statement. Usually, the amounts

charged to the impairment account are derecognized when further recovery of cash is not expected.

The rest of the accounts included in “Loans and receivables” have not suffered any impairment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each of the previously mentioned

accounts receivable categories. The Company does not have any guarantee as insurance.
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11. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Listed securities:

- Investment funds and equity securities 28,082 5,051

Non-listed securities

- Equity securities – Euro zone 59 59

28,141 5,110

Movement on available-for-sale financial assets is summarized below:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year 5,110 63

Additions 30,859 6,400

Disposals (7,737) (1,810)

Net gains / (losses) transferred to equity (793) 369

Net gains / (losses) on disposals of assets (Note 24.b) 702 88

Balance at end of year 28,141 5,110

Less: non-current portion 28,141 5,110

Current portion - -

In 2012, participations in two monetary investment funds were acquired for 14,608 and 11,000 thousand euros,

repsectively, and participations of 10 thousand euros had been sold before the end of the reporting period. At the

end of the 2012 reporting period, the measurement of these funds represented net losses of 3 thousand euros

recognized in equity.

In 2011, participations in a monetary investment fund denominated in dollars (MS INVF US Dollar Liquidity I) were

acquired for 6,400 thousand euros. In 2012, participations of 5,251 thousand euros were acquired in this fund and

participations were sold for an amount of 7,727 thousand euros (1,810 thousand euros in 2011), on which a total

gain of 702 thousand euros (88 thousand euros in 2011) was obtained. At the end of the 2012 reporting period,

the measurement of this fund represented losses of 790 thousand euros (gains of 369 thousand euros in 2011)

recognized in equity. This investment fund is denominated in dollars.

In the years 2012 and 2011, there were no provisions for impairment of available-for-sale financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was the fair value of the securities classified as

available for sale.
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12. Inventories

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Trade inventories 18,315 12,817

Raw materials and other consumables 2,529 1,526

Finished goods

Work in progress

Inventory write-down

4,386

969

(630)

639

1,972

(1,018)

25,569 15,936

In 2012 inventory write-down has decreased by 388 thousand euros.

The inventories purchase/sale commitments at the year end were as normal in the course of business and

Management estimates that meeting these commitments will not generate losses for the Company.

The Company holds several insurance policies to cover the risks the inventories are exposed to. The insurance

cover is considered sufficient.

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Cash at bank and on hand

Other equivalent liquid assets

8,618

-

28,455

-

8,618 28,455

14. Share capital

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the share capital consisted of 50,000,000 shares with a face value of 0.06 euros

each.

All the shares issued are fully paid up. At 31 December, 2012, Inversiones Clidia, S.L. held 66.840 % of the share

capital (63.594% at 31 December, 2011).
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Shareholders owning directly or indirectly significant interests of more than 3% in the share capital of Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. of which the Company is aware, according to the information in the official records of

the National Securities Market Commission at 31 December, 2012, are the following:

Shareholder % direct % indirect TOTAL

Inversiones Clidia, S.L. 66.840 - 66.840

Bestinver Gestión, S.A. SGIIC - 5.098 5.098

Norges Bank 3.033 - 3.033

Shares in Inversiones Clidia, S.L., holder of 66.840% of the Company’s shares (63.594% at 31 December, 2011),

are held by Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López (52.288 %) and Messrs. Juan, Iván and Javier López-Belmonte

Encina (15.904% each).

In 2012, the company Inversiones Clidia, S.L. reinforced its position in Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. by

increasing its voting rights by 3.246% (0.697% in 2011) through successive acquisitions of shares from third

parties, for which Inversiones Clidia, S.L. paid a total of 36 thousand euros (1.678 thousand euros in 2011), and

from the shares in Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. contributed to Inversiones Clidia, S.L. as a result of the

capital increase that took place in the latter in 2012.

All the shares (with a face value of 0.06 euros each) are listed on the Madrid, Barcelona, Valencia and Bilbao

Stock Exchanges.

15. Reserves and retained earnings

a) Reserves

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Legal reserves and reserves required by the By-Laws:

- Legal reserve 600 600

600 600

Other reserves:

- Non-distributable special reserve

- Voluntary reserves

- Revaluation reserve Royal Decree-Law 7/96

5.036

472

851

5.036

472

851

6.359 6.359

6.959 6.959

Legal reserve

The legal reserve has been created in accordance with Article 274 of the Spanish Capital Companies Act (“Ley de

Sociedades de Capital”), which states that 10% of the profit for the year must be allocated to the legal reserve

until at least 20% of the share capital is covered.
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The legal reserve is not available for distribution. Should the legal reserve be used to offset losses in the event of

no other reserves being available for this purpose, it must be replenished with future profits.

Non-distributable special reserve

On 6 July, 1994, the universal Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders resolved to reduce the share

capital by 5,036 thousand euros by the write-off of 837,853 shares. Shareholders’ contributions were not refunded

in this reduction and, consequently, a special reserve for the same amount was created. This reserve, which will

receive the same treatment as the legal reserve, may only be used to offset losses when no other reserves are

available for this purpose.

Revaluation reserve Royal Decree-Law 7/1996, of 7 June

The balance of the “Revaluation reserve” comes from the balance sheet restatement regulated in article 5 of

Royal Decree-Law 7/1996 of 7 June. The balance of this account is available and property, plant and equipment

elements related to this reserve had been fully depreciated at 31 December, 2012.

b) Retained earnings

During 2012, retained earnings increased and/or decreased as follows:

 On 13 June, 2012, the General Meeting of Shareholders of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. resolved

to approve the proposal for the distribution of the 2011 profit (7,704 thousand euros), allocating 6,345

thousand euros to dividends and the remainder to retained earnings. The dividend relating to the shares

held by Rovi as treasury shares was 45 thousand euros, which was recognized as retained earnings.

 Sale of treasury stock in 2012 led to a loss of 212 thousand euros, which was recognized as retained

earnings (Note 15.c).

In 2011, retained earnings increased and/or decreased as follows:

 On 14 June, 2011, the General Meeting of Shareholders of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. resolved

to approve the proposal for the distribution of the 2010 profit (11,758 thousand euros), allocating 8,604

thousand euros to dividends and the remainder to retained earnings. The dividend relating to the shares

held by the Rovi as treasury shares was 57 thousand euros, which was recognized in profit and loss as

retained earnings.

 Sale of treasury stock in 2011 led to a loss of 29 thousand euros, which was recognized as retained

earnings (Note 15.c).
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c) Treasury shares

In the course of 2012, the Company acquired a total of 361,939 of its own shares (28,546 in 2011), paying the

amount of 1,838 thousand euros for them (147 thousand euros in 2010). Likewise, it resold a total of 293,292 of

its own shares (28,882 in 2011) for an amount of 1,488 thousand euros (156 thousand euros in 2011). These

shares had been acquired at a weighted average cost of 1,700 thousand euros (185 thousand euros in 2011),

giving rise to a loss of 212 thousand euros on the sale (in 2011, the sale of treasury shares represented a loss of

29 thousand euros), which was taken to reserves. At 31 December, 2012, the Company held 371,940 treasury

shares (303,293 at 31 December, 2011).

The Company is entitled to reissue these shares at a later date.

d) Dividends

On 13 June, 2012, the General Meeting of Shareholders approved the distribution of the 2011 profit, which

included a dividend to be distributed to shareholders for a maximum total amount of 6,345 thousand euros

(0.1269 euros gross per share). This dividend was paid out in July 2012.

On 14 June, 2011, the General Meeting of Shareholders approved the distribution of the 2010 profit proposed by

the Board of Directors on 23 February, 2011, which included a dividend to be distributed to shareholders for a

maximum total amount of 8,604 thousand euros (0.17208 euros gross per share). This dividend was paid out in

July 2011.

16. Profit for the year

The proposed application of the profit and reserves that will be submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders

is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011
Basis of application

Profit for the year 20,634 7,704

20,634 7,704

Application

Retained earnings 13,804 1,359

Dividends 6,830 6,345

20,634 7,704
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17. Grants, donations and legacies received

Movement on this caption was as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Beginning of the year (net of tax)

Increases (net of tax)

Decreases (net of tax)

Allocation to profit and loss (net of tax)

7,991

840

-

(767)

8,406

1,103

(4)

(1,514)

End of year (net of tax) 8,064 7,991

Details of non-reimbursable capital grants shown on the statement of financial position under the caption “Grants,

donations and legacies received”, not including the tax effect, are as follows:

Awarding entity

Thousands

of euros Purpose

Date

awarded

Andalusian Regional Govt (1)

Ministry of Health (2)

Andalusian Regional Government (3)

Andalusian Regional Government

Miscellaneous government entities

1,784

3,285

4,399

233

1,820

Construction of Granada plant (Note 6.e)

Development of VLP vaccine and

construction of vaccine plant in Granada

Construction of Granada plant (Note 6.e)

Subsidy for interests on loan for construction

of bemiparin Granada plant

Miscellaneous projects

2010

2009

2008

2007

2001 onwards

11,521

(1) For the construction of the Granada bemiparin plant, the Innovation, Science and Enterprise Department

of the Andalusian Regional Government granted the Group a non-reimbursable grant of 2,200 thousand

euros. Recognition of this grant in the income statement commenced on 1 January, 2010 and the

amount recognized under the caption “Grants, donations and legacies received” at 31 December, 2012

was 1,784 thousand euro (1,923 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011). At 31 December, 2012, this

grant had not yet been collected.

(2) In 2009, the Company received a decision whereby the Ministry of Health and Social Policy granted a

repayable loan of 11,900 thousand euros for development of the vaccine against seasonal influenza and

the construction of a new vaccine production plant in Granada. This loan was collected in 2010. A

subsidized interest rate is associated to this loan and is recognized under the caption “Grants, donations

and legacies received” for an amount of 3,285 thousand euros at 31 December, 2012 (3,285 thousand

euros at 31 December, 2011).

(3) Non-reimbursable grant granted by the Andalusian Innovation and Development Agency (Innovation,

Science and Company Department) for 5,431 thousand euros. This grant was received in November

2008 and recognition in the income statement commenced in 2009, when the assets for which it was

granted began to be depreciated. The amount recognized for this grant under the caption “Grants,

donations and legacies received” at 31 December, 2012 was 4,399 thousand euros (4,694 thousand

euros at 31 December, 2011).
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18. Debits and payables

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Non-current debits and payables

- Bank borrowings (a) 1,213 2,840

- Debt with government entities (b) 22,951 23,709

24,164 26,549

Current debits and payables

- Bank borrowings (a) 1,600 1,959

- Debt with government entities (b) 3,453 3,314

- Current debt with group and associated companies (Note 31.f) 121 107

- Trade payables 18,482 19,768

- Trade payables related parties (Note 31.f) 45,896 16,364

- Sundry creditors 844 29

- Employees 1,815 3,124

72,211 44,665

96,375 71,214

In compliance with the disclosure requirement in relation to payment delays to suppliers contained in Additional

Provision 3, “Disclosure requirement” of Law 15/2010 if 5 July, which amended Law 3/2004 of 29 December,

whereby measures to fight against late payment in commercial transactions were put in place, we report that, at

31 December, 2012, the Company had made payments of 96 million euros (100 million euros at 31 December,

2011) to suppliers without significantly exceeding the legal limits on payment delay. Practically the whole of the

outstanding balance payable to suppliers at 31 December, 2012 did not accumulate a delay longer than the legal

payment period, since said balances either result from contracts signed before 7 July, 2010 or the delay does not

exceed the period fixed by Law 15/2010 for the year 2012 (75 days).

The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current debt are as follows:

Thousands of euros

Carrying amount Fair value

2012 2011 2012 2011

- Bank borrowings

- Debt with government entities

1,213

22,951

2,840

23,709

1,213

22,312

2,840

22,845

24,164 26,549 23,525 25,685

The carrying amount of current debt is similar to the fair value, since the effect of the discount is not significant. The

fair values are based on the cash flows discounted at a rate based on the borrowing rate of 2% (2.00% in 2011).

The carrying value of the Company’s debt is in euros.
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a) Bank borrowings

The non-current debt with financial institutions is entirely composed of bank borrowings:

a.1) in 2009, the Company obtained two new bank loans from Bankinter the interest rates of which are subsidized

by the Andalusian Regional Government:

- The first of these loans was for 1,900 thousand euros, with a six-year repayment period and no grace period.

The interest accrued was Euribor at one year plus a spread of 1.10% p.a. The interest subsidized by the

Andalusian Regional Government is 227 thousand euros. In 2012 and 2011, the Company collected the whole

of of this subsidized interest (50 thousand euros in 2012 and 177 thousand euros in 2011), which led to the

related decrease in the debt recognized in Rovi’s liabilities.

- The second of the loans, for 800 thousand euros, also has a repayment period of 6 years and no grace period.

The interest rate on this loan is 4.47% p.a. The interest subsidized by the Andalusian Regional Government

was 69 thousand euros, which was collected in 2012, with the related decrease in the debt recognized in the

Company’s liabilities.

These loans mature as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

2012 - 454

2013 377 472

2014 387 336

2015 66 54

830 1,316

Non-current 453 862

Current 377 454

a.2) In 2007, the Company obtained a bank loan from the bank Espirito Santo for the amount of 6,000 thousand

euros. The nominal interest rate on the loan was 5.289% per annum until 24 September 2008, since when the

rate has been Euribor plus 0.6%, recalculated annually. The repayment period is 6 years (with quarterly

payments).

The maturity dates for this loan are as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

2012 - 1,251

2013 961 961

961 2,212

Non-current - 961

Current 961 1,251
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a.3) In 2006 ROVI obtained a loan from Caja Granada, now Banco Mare Nostrum, S.A., for 2,500 thousands of

euros, maturing in 2016 (with a two-year grace period). The notional annual interest rate for this loan was 4.361%

until 31 July, 2007, since when the rate has been Euribor plus 0.5%. In 2007, the Andalusian Regional

Government subsidized part of the capital of the loan for the amount of 487 thousand euros. Hence, the debt was

reduced to 2,013 thousand euros.

The maturity dates for this borrowing are as follows:

Management considers that the Company will be able to meet all the contractual obligations derived from the

loans in the future on a timely basis.

b) Debt with government entities

Since 2001, the Company has been receiving reimbursable grants from different Ministries to finance a number of

R&D projects. The amount recorded as “Non-current debits and payables” for this item at 31 December, 2012 was

22,534 thousand euros (22,876 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011). The transactions do not accrue interest and

have been recognized at their initial fair values. The difference between the initial fair value and the face value

accrues at market interest rates (Euribor and the interest rate on Spanish Treasury debt plus a spread in accordance

with the Company’s risk). This means that this debt accrues interest at effective interest rates ranging from 2.9% to

4.9%.

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

2012 - 254

2013 262 258

2014 265 263

2015 268 268

2016 227 228

1,022 1,271

Non-current 760 1.017

Current 262 254
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b.1) Reimbursable advances received in 2012:

In 2012, the Company received various reimbursable advance from different entities, details of which are shown

below:

Thousands of euros Years

Entity Project Face value

Initial fair

value Project Face value

Industrial Technological Development Centre (1) 676 463 11 3

Industrial Technological Development Centre (2) 430 278 11 3

Industrial Technological Development Centre (3) 194 160 6 2

Industrial Technological Development Centre (4) 79 54 11 3

Industrial Technological Development Centre (5) 96 67 11 3

Industrial Technological Development Centre (6) 85 58 11 3

Technical Corporation of Andalusia (4) 77 52 13 3

Technical Corporation of Andalusia (7) 38 27 13 3

1,675 1,159

(1) Funds the project to assess chronic toxicity in the design of long-term injectable ISM formulations of

risperidone (2012 annual instalment).

(2) Funds the integral study of low molecular weight heparins obtained through alternative synthesis

methods.

(3) Funds the acquisition of scientific and technological infrastructures for the R&D control laboratory in

Granada.

(4) Funds the project to develop a formulation of olanzapine to be administered monthly.

(5) Funds the project to study new active ingredients for treatment of chronic torpid ulcers.

(6) Funds the project to study multi-layer technologies for application in the design of urethral catheters.

(7) Funds the project to study new active ingredients for treatment of chronic torpid ulcers.

b.2) Advances received in 2011:

Thousands of euros Years

Entity Project Face value

Initial fair

value Project Face value

Ministry of Science and Innovation (1) 923 683 10 3

Ministry of Science and Innovation (2) 83 52 15 3

Industrial Technological Development Centre (3) 255 194 10 2

Industrial Technological Development Centre (4) 225 154 10 2

Industrial Technological Development Centre (5) 633 439 10 2

Technical Corporation of Andalusia (6) 317 213 13 3

Technical Corporation of Andalusia (7) 76 52 13 3

2,512 1,787

(1) Funds the study for new applications of low molecular weight heparins in long-term treatment (2010

annual instalment).

(2) Funds the project to modernize the scientific/technological equipment of the Granada bemiparin plant.

(3) Funds the project for the toxokinetic assessment of a monthly injectable formulation of risperidone.

(4) Funds the project to assess chronic toxicity in the design of long-term injectable ISM formulations of

risperidone.

(5) Funds the project for the quarterly formulation of letrozole to treat breast carcinomas RH+.

(6) Funds the project for development of a formulation of olanzapine to be administered monthly.

(7) Funds the project to study new active ingredients for the treatment of chronic torpid ulcers.
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At 31 December, 2012, debt with government entities matured as follows:

Thousands of euros

Reimbursable

advances from

Ministries

Reimbursable

incentives from

Andalusian

Regional Govt. Total

2013 3,036 417 3,453

2014 2,793 417 3,210

2015 2,061 - 2,061

2016 2,508 - 2,508

2017 2,671 - 2,671

2018 onwards 12,501 - 12,501

25,570 834 26,404

Non-current 22,534 417 22,951

Current 3,036 417 3,453

At 31 December, 2011, debt with government entities matured as follows:

Thousands of euros

Reimbursable

advances from

Ministries

Reimbursable

incentives from

Andalusian

Regional Govt. Total

2012 2,897 417 3,314

2013 3,675 417 4,092

2014 2,588 416 3,004

2015 2,478 - 2,478

2016 2,405 - 2,405

2017 onwards 11,730 - 11,730

25,773 1,250 27,023

Non-current 22,876 833 23,709

Current 2,897 417 3,314

19. Current and non-current accruals

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Non-current

Current

1,005

179

1,234

129

Total accruals 1,184 1,363

The accruals caption, both current and non-current, records the amounts received for the assignment of the rights to

market Hibor in a number of countries. The Company defers the revenue over the terms of the contracts, which have

a duration of between 10 and 15 years. In 2012, no deferred revenue was recognized for new Hibor distribution

contracts.
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20. Other provisions

Movements on the current provisions recognised in the statement of financial position was as follows:

Thousands of euros

Returns Health tax Total

Beginning of year

Additions

Applications

504

531

(504)

745

1,120

(745)

1,249

1,651

(1,249)

End of year 531 1,120 1,651

Returns

The Company estimates a provision for product returns considering the average return rate of recent years (Note

2.b).

Health tax

As stated in note 3.17, the Company’s policy has been to hold a provision for the amounts estimated to be paid as

health tax, based on percentages fixed for each level of sales for the year.

21. Deferred income tax

Details of deferred income tax are as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Deferred income tax assets

- Temporary differences 287 151

- Other tax credits 800 -

1,087 151

Deferred tax liabilities:

- Temporary differences (5,837) (5,802)

(5,837) (5,802)

Deferred income tax (4,750) (5,651)
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and intends to settle the net amounts or realize the asset and

cancel the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets:

- Non-current - -

- Current 1,087 151

1,087 151

Deferred tax liabilities:

- Non-current (4,765) (4,834)

- Current (1,072) (968)

(5,837) (5,802)

Net deferred income tax (4,750) (5,651)

Gross movement on the deferred tax account was as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Beginning of the year (5,651) (5,040)

(Charged) /credited to profit and loss 695 (678)

Tax charged directly to equity 206 67

End of year (4,750) (5,651)

Movement on deferred tax assets and liabilities in the year, not including the offsetting of balances, was as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Grants,

donations

and legacies

received

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets Other Total

Balance at 1 January, 2011 (3,602) - (1,581) (5,183)

Charged (credited) to P&L

Charged to equity

-

178

-

(111)

(686)

-

(686)

67

Balance at 31 December, 2011 (3,424) (111) (2,267) (5,802)

Charged (credited) to P&L

Charged to equity

-

(32)

-

111

(114)

-

(114)

79

Balance at 31 December, 2012 (3,456) - (2,381) (5,837)
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Deferred tax liabilities credited to profit and loss in 2012 for 114 thousand euros (686 thousand euros in 2011) in

the column “Other” relate principally to the application of the free depreciation regime to the assets attached to

R&D activity and to the maintenance of jobs.

Deferred tax assets

Tax credits

pending

application

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets Provisions Total

Balance at 1 January, 2011 - - 143 143

Charged (credited) to P&L - - 8 8

Balance at 31 December, 2011 - - 151 151

Charged (credited to P&L 800 - 9 809

Charged to equity - 127 - 127

Balance at 31 December, 2012 800 127 160 1,087

Deferred tax charged to the equity during the year was as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Fair value reserves in equity:

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Grants, donations and legacies received

238

(32)

(111)

178

206 67

22. Revenue and expenses

a) Net sales

The net amount of the sales from the Company’ ordinary activities is geographically distributed as follows:

%

Market 2012 2011

Spain 85% 87%

Italy 3% 3%

Greece 2% 2%

France 2% -

Portugal 1% 1%

Austria 1% 1%

Turkey 1% -

Other 5% 6%

100% 100%
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The net amount of the sales from the Company’ ordinary activities distributed by product group is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Pharmaceutical products 110,785 100,512

Contrast agents and other hospital products 20,691 21,941

Non-prescription pharmaceutical products 5,907 6,861

Sale of bemiparin to other group companies (Note 31.a) 23,137 22,464

Other 749 7,900

Total 161,269 159,678

In July 2011, the Spanish government announced a package of measures to reduce pharmaceutical expenditure.

The impact of these new measuures, which came into force in November 2011, has not been significant for the

Company.

The line “Other” at 31 December, 2011 includes principally the sale of the registration Fitoladius to a third party.

b) Goods, raw materials and other consumables used

Thousands of euros

Consumption: 2012 2011

Purchases 102,555 88,647

Change in inventories (6,501) 3,766

96,054 92,413

c) Ancillary and other current management income

This caption includes revenue from administration services rendered and sales force transfers to other group

companies (Note 31.a).

d) Operating grants recognized in profit and loss

The Company obtained and recognized as income official grants of 1,157 thousand euros (3,319 thousand

euros in 2011) to cover principally expenses for the year in certain R&D projects and the construction of the

Granada plant.

e) Employees

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Wages, salaries and similar 26,054 27,072

Employee benefits:

- Pension contributions and provisions (Note 3.10.a) 51 51

- Other welfare charges 4,496 4,428

30,601 31,551
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The line “Wages, salaries and similar” includes termination payments of 1,261 thousand euros (555 thousand

euros in 2011).

The average number of employees in the year was, by category, as follows:

2012 2011

Executive directors

Management

Research

Marketing

Administration

4

5

78

291

40

4

3

68

296

43

418 414

Likewise, the distribution of the Company’s employees by sex was as follows:

2012 2011

Men Women Total Men Women Total

Executive directors 4 - 4 4 - 4

Management 5 - 5 3 - 3

Research

Marketing

Administration

28

155

10

46

108

31

74

263

41

24

172

9

42

116

35

66

288

44

202 185 387 212 193 405

At 31 December, 2012, the headcount included 7 employees with a disability equal to or higher than 33% (5 at 31

December, 2011).

23. Income tax and tax situation

As of 31 December 2012 and 2011, the balances with public authorities were as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Debit Credit Debit Credit

Public Treasury, VAT 835 - 403 432

Public Treasury, withholdings & payments on account 11 - 36 -

Public Treasury, personal income tax

Corporate income tax

Social security

Other balances with public authorities

-

3,855

-

4,629

1,201

-

432

-

-

3,682

-

4,395

1,286

-

454

-

9,330 1,633 8,516 2,172
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The heading “Other balances with public authorities” includes accounts receivable from public entities for the

following items:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Late payment interest receivable 590 376

Grants awarded but not received 4,039 4,019

4,629 4,395

On 1 August, 2007, the Company became the parent of tax group 362/07. Applying the consolidated tax regime

provided for in the corporate income tax legislation, ROVI, the parent company of the tax group, includes in its

statement of financial position debt with Group companies with a tax effect (Note 31.f) of 121 thousand euros (107

thousand euros in 2011), together with credits with group companies with a tax effect of 5,799 thousand euros

(1,534 thousand euros in 2011).

The reconciliation between the net income and expenses for the year and the tax profit is as follows:

Income and expenses

credited/(charged) directly to

equityIncome statement

Balance of income & expenses for

the year 20,634 (482)

Increases Decreases Total Increases Decreases Total

Income tax (3,040) (206)

Permanent differences

- Individual 525 (179) 346 - - -

- Due to tax consolidation - (16,421) (16,421) - - -

Temporary differences

- Individual

- originating in the year 531 (1,159) (628) - - -

- originating in previous years 1,198 (504) 694 - - -

- Due to tax consolidation

- originating in the year - (1,588) (1,588) - - -

- originating in previous years 1,177 - 1,177 - - -

Taxable income 1,174 (688)

Permanent individual differences relate to non-tax deductible expenses and the transfer of intangible assets.

Permanent differences due to consolidation relate solely to eliminations resulting from the distribution of dividends

among companies belonging to the tax group.

Individual temporary differences relate to application of freedom of amortization/depreciation associated to the

assets attached to the R&D activity, expenses recognized in the accounts but temporarily non-deductible, and the

free amortization/depreciation associated to maintaining jobs.
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Temporary differences due to consolidation relate to eliminations and additions resulting from transactions

between companies belonging to the tax group.

Income tax expense comprises:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Current tax (352) (32)

Tax credits 2,442 1,480

Deferred tax 695 (678)

Adjustment income tax previous years 255 246

3,040 1,016

Current income tax is the result of applying a tax rate of 30% to the taxable income.

The Company generated tax credits of 1,645 thousand euros in 2012 (1,508 thousand euros in 2011) and

likewise was entitled to offset tax credits of 2,254 thousand euros from previous years (586 thousand euros in

2011). In 2012, tax credits of 2,442 thousand euros were applied (1,480 thousand euros in 2011) and there were

further R&D tax credits of 1,645 thousand euros that had not been recognized and are pending application in

future years (2,094 thousand euros in 2011). For the total tax credits not yet applied at 31 December, 2012, the

Company recognized 800 thousand euros in its assets (Note 21).

The amount paid by the Company as payments on account of the corporate income tax of companies belonging

to the tax group was 3,502 thousand euros in 2012 (2,206 thousand euros in 2011). At 31 December, 2012, the

amount receivable from the tax authorities in relation to the tax Group’s corporate income tax was 3,855 thousand

euros (3,682 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011), 1,504 thousand of which related to the tax for 2012.

As provided in article 42.10 of Royal Legislative Decree 4/2004 of 6 March whereby the Revised Text of the

Corporate Income Tax Act was approved, the amounts subject to the reinvestment tax credit were as follows:

Year

Income subject to
reinvestment

(thousands of
euros)

Reinvestment
date

2009 2,860 2009

2010 2,250 2010

2011 5,600 2011

2012 - -

The following taxes were open to inspection by the tax authorities for the periods stated at 31 December, 2012:

Tax Years

Corporate income tax 08-11

VAT 09-12

Personal income tax 09-12

Transfer tax 09-12
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At 31 December, 2012, the value-added tax and personal income tax of the Company for the years 2007 and

2008 were undergoing an inspection. Likewise, the corporate income tax of consolidated tax group 362/07, of

which the Company is the parent, was being inspected for the years ended 31 December, 2007 and 2008.

As a result of, among other things, possible different interpretations of current tax legislation, additional liabilities

could arise as the result of an inspection. At any event, the Directors consider that any such liabilities would not

have a significant effect on the annual accounts.

24. Finance income and costs

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Finance revenue:

Gains on equity instruments

- In group and associated companies (Note 30.d)

Gains on marketable securities and other financial instruments

- Of third parties

(16,421)

(862)

(4,803)

(1,635)

(17,283) (6,438)

Finance costs:

Debt with third parties 2,169 1,706

2,169 1,706

Impairment and losses on financial instruments

Gains/Losses on disposals and other (702) (88)

(702) (88)

Finance income and costs (15,816) (4,820)

a) Finance revenue and costs

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Finance revenue:

- Dividends from holdings in group & associated companies

- Other finance gains

(16,421)

(862)

(4,803)

(1,635)

(17,283) (6,438)

Finance costs:

- Loan interest 2,169 1,706

2,169 1,706

(15,114) (4,732)

b) Impairment and losses on disposals of financial instruments

In 2012, the Company transferred 702 thousand euros from equity to profit and loss as a result of the gains

arising on the sale of participations in the investment fund denominated in dollars (88 thousand dollars in 2011)

(Note 11).
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25. Cash flows from operating activities

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Pre-tax profit for the year 17.594 6.688

Adjustments to the profit:

- Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets (Notes 5 & 6) 3,062 2,861

- (Losses)/gains on derecognition and disposals of fin. instruments (Note 8) 21 109

- Finance revenue (Note 24.a) (862) (1,635)

- Finance costs (Note 24.a) 2,169 1,688

- Change in provisions 402 9

- Grant for non-financial fixed assets and distribution licence revenue (945) (2,619)

- Other revenues and costs - (88)

21,441 7,013

Changes in working capital:

- Inventories (9,633) 5,758

- Debtors and other receivables (25,289) 56,667

- Creditors and other payables 26,142 (52,106)

(8,780) 10,319

Other cash flows from operating activities

- Interest paid (105) (155)

- Income tax received (paid) (2,068) (1,317)

- Other amounts received (paid) - 700

(2,173) (772)

Cash flows from operating activities 10,488 16,560

26. Cash flows from investing activities

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Payments for investments

- Group and associated company (Note 8) 4 (100)

- Intangible assets (Note 5) (592) (695)

- Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) (3,871) (3,003)

- Other financial assets (Notes 8 & 10) (31,914) (12,400)

- Other assets (Note 10) - (65)

(36,373) (16,263)

Amounts received from disinvestments:

- Other financial assets (Note 11) 14,751 6,810

- Other assets (Note 24.a) 862 1,635

15,613 8,445

Cash flows from investing activities (20,760) (7,818)
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27. Cash flows from financing activities

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Amounts received and paid for financial liability instruments:

- Other debt (2,915) (1,370)

(2,915) (1,370)

Dividend payments and remuneration of other equity instruments:

- Dividends (Note 15 b) & d) (6,300) (8,547)

- Transactions with treasury shares (Note 15 c) (350) 9

(6,650) (8,538)

Cash flows from financing activities (9,565) (9,908)

28. Contingencies

At 31 December, 2012, the Company held bank guarantees amounting to 9,218 thousand euros (9,677 thousand

euros in 2011). These guarantees were granted principally to enable group companies to participate in public

tenders and to receive grants and reimbursable advances.

29. Commitments

a) Operating lease commitments

The minimum future payments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December, 2012 were 2,222

thousand euros (1,345 thousand euros at 31 December, 2011), 1,111 thousand euros of which related to

payments due at less than one year (1,345 thousand euros at less than one year at 31 December, 2011).

The operating lease expense recognized in profit and loss in 2012 was 1,624 thousand euros (1,146 thousand

euros at 31 December, 2011).

b) Acquisition of Bertex Pharma GmbH

Future payment commitments derive from the agreement for the purchase of the company Bertex Pharma GmbH

in 2007. The purchase agreement fixes a variable component that will depend upon the successful completion of

clinical tests for the development of products and the subsequent marketing.
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The commitments related to this transaction are:

b.1) If the development and commercialization is performed internally:

 350 thousand euros after finishing successfully the development of clinical tests of phase 1. Part of this

amount, 100 thousand euros, was settled in 2011, while the rest depends on the commencement of the

phase 2 clinical tests.

 A payment of 200 thousand euros after finishing successfully the development of clinical tests of phase 2.

 A payment of 300 thousand euros after finishing successfully the development of clinical tests of phase 3.

 A payment of 200 thousand euros at the beginning of the marketing of any pharmaceutical product.

 A payment of 200 thousand euros at the beginning of the marketing of any pharmaceutical product in any of

the principal markets (USA, Japan, Germany, France, Italy or UK).

b.2) If development and marketing is performed by third parties:

 5% of the revenues obtained by Rovi from the development and marketing of the products by third parties

(net of direct or indirect production costs and administration expenses).

Payments for the internal development or commercialization detailed in section a) exclude those performed under

section b) and vice versa, but, if Rovi completes clinical development phases 1 and 2 and entrusts the

subsequent phases to a third party or performs them for a third party, this clause will apply, but the payments

made for phases 1 and 2 under section a) will be deducted

The evolution of the clinical tests performed by Bertex GmbH is progressing as planned.

30. Compensation of the Board of Directors and Senior Management

At 31 December, 2012, the members of the Board of Directors were as follows:

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López Chairman

Mr. Enrique Castellón Leal Deputy Chairman

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte Encina Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Miguel Corsini Freese Director

Mr. Javier López-Belmonte Encina Director

Mr. Iván López-Belmonte Encina Director

Mr. José Félix Gálvez Merino Non-director Secretary
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a) In accordance with the provisions of Article 28 of the Board of Directors Regulations of Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A., the following information is provided with respect to the members of the Board of

Directors at 31 December 2012:

1. An individual breakdown of the compensation of each director, including, where applicable:

a. Per diem expenses or other fixed remuneration received as director and additional remuneration

received as chairman or member of any Board committee. The amounts for 2012 and 2011 were as

follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López 60 60

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte Encina 60 60

Mr. Enrique Castellón Leal 60 60

Mr. Javier López-Belmonte Encina 60 60

Mr. Iván López-Belmonte Encina 60 60

Mr. Alfonso Monfort Alcalá - 60

Mr. Miguel Corsini Freese 60 60

Mr. Gonzalo Suárez Martín 32 -

Mr. Francisco de Paula Lombardo Enríquez 19 51

Banco Mare Nostrum, S.A. - 9

411 480

b. Any remuneration corresponding to shares in profits or bonuses and the reason why such amounts

were awarded:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Banco Mare Nostrum, S.A. - 382

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López - 278

- 660

The director Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López, in his capacity as a shareholder of Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A., received a dividend of 278 thousand euros in 2011. In 2012, Mr. Juan

López-Belmonte López ceased to be a direct shareholder of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A.

and, therefore, did not receive direct dividends from the company. Banco Mare Nostrum, S.A. received

382 thousand euros as dividends in 2011. This entity did not form part of Rovi’s Board of Directors in

2012.
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c. Contributions made to defined contribution pension plans in the director’s favour (Note 3.10.a); or

increases in the vested rights of the director in the case of contributions to defined benefit plans (no

defined benefit plans exist):

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López 13 13

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte Encina 10 10

Mr. Javier López-Belmonte Encina 10 10

Mr. Iván López-Belmonte Encina 10 10

43 43

d. Any severance payments agreed to or paid in the event of termination of mandate: not applicable

e. Remuneration received as director of other group companies: not applicable

f. Remuneration for the performance of senior management functions received by executive directors.

The remuneration of this kind for 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Fixed Variable Fixed Variable

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López 167 66 166 95

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte Encina 280 118 278 109

Mr. Javier López-Belmonte Encina 202 91 201 78

Mr. Iván López-Belmonte Encina 202 91 201 78

851 366 846 360

g. Any item of remuneration other than the above, irrespective of its nature or the group company that

paid it, especially when classified as a related transaction other when its omission would distort the true

and fair view of the total remuneration received by the director: not applicable

2. Individual breakdown of any awards made to directors of shares, share options or any other instrument

linked to share price, stating:

a. The number of shares or options awarded in the year and the conditions applicable for exercising

them;

b. The number of options exercised during the year, indicating the number of shares involved and the

exercise price.

c. The number of options pending exercise at the year end, indicating price, date, and other exercise

requirements;
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d. Any amendment during the year of the conditions for exercising of options already awarded.

In 2012 and 2011, no shares, options or other instruments linked to the share value were given to

directors.

3. Information on the relationship, in the last year, between remuneration received by executive directors and

results or other measurements of the Company’s performance:

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Compensation of executive directors 1,217 1,206

Profit attributable to the Company 20,634 7,704

Compensation of executive directors / Profit attributable

to the Company 5.90% 15.65%

b) Compensation and loans to senior management

The total remuneration paid to members of senior management in 2012, excluding the remuneration received by

the executive directors described in points a)1.c) and a)1.f above, was 774 thousand euros (1,112 thousand

euros in 2011, 8 thousand euros of which related to contributions to defined-contribution pension plans).

No loans have been granted to members of senior management in the last two years.

c) Ownership interests and offices held by members of the Board of Directors in other analogous companies

In accordance with the Capital Companies Act, article 229, paragraph 2, the directors of Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. notify the direct or indirect interests that either they or the persons related to them to

which the Capital Companies Act, article 231 refers hold in the capital of a company with the same, an analogous

or a complementary type of activity to the company’s corporate purpose and likewise notify the positions they hold

or functions they perform therein.

- Juan López-Belmonte López, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, has the following ownership

interests, positions and activities in other companies:

Company Activity Holding Function or position
Sister, S.A. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The manufacture and
industrialization of all kinds of
drugs, plus their promotion and
marketing and, in general, all
activities involved in the
operations of a laboratory.

Direct
100%

Sole Administrator

Bertex Pharma GmbH The development, distribution
and marketing of technologies
for the manufacture of forms of
pharmaceutical and cosmetic
administration and consulting
activities in the pharmacological
development sector.

Indirect
34.95%

None
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Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
34.95%

None

Gineladius, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The import, export, distribution
and marketing of all kinds of
articles relating directly to
integral female healthcare. The
registration, promotion,
distribution and wholesaling of
branded pharmaceuticals and
healthcare products.

Indirect
34.95%

None

Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
34.95%

None

Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

The registration, promotion,
distribution and sale of branded
pharmaceuticals and healthcare
products and any other
activities relating to healthcare.

Indirect
34.95%

None

Alentia Biotech, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The purchase, manufacture,
storage and marketing of and
intermediation in the sale of all
kinds of medicines, vaccines,
health and pharmaceutical
products and raw materials
employed in producing said
products, including any
complementary, subsidiary or
derivative activity or any activity
that leads to the
aforementioned.

Indirect
17.47%

Member of the Board
of Directors

Frosst Ibérica, S.A. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The provision, development,
manufacture, production, sale
and distribution of services,
articles, items and goods,
primarily in the pharmaceutical
field.

Indirect
34.95%

None

The persons related to the director Juan López-Belmonte López who hold interests in other companies with a

type of activity that is analogous or complementary to that of Rovi are Juan López-Belmonte Encina, Iván López-

Belmonte Encina and Javier López-Belmonte Encina, who are also directors of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi,

S.A. Therefore, we refer to the information that each one of them has provided to meet the provisions of the

Capital Companies Act, article 229.
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- Juan López-Belmonte Encina, a member of the company’s Board of Directors, has the following interests and

relationships as mentioned in the Capital Companies Act, article 229:

Company Activity Holding Function or position
Bertex Pharma GmbH The development, distribution

and marketing of technologies
for the manufacture of forms of
pharmaceutical and cosmetic
administration and consulting
activities in the pharmacological
development sector.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
10.63%

Personal
representative of the

Sole Administrator,
Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi,
S.A.

Gineladius, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The import, export, distribution
and marketing of all kinds of
articles relating directly to
integral female healthcare. The
registration, promotion,
distribution and wholesaling of
branded pharmaceuticals and
healthcare products.

Indirect
10.63%

Personal
representative of the

Sole Administrator,
Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi,
S.A.

Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
10.63%

Personal
representative of the

Sole Administrator,
Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi,
S.A.

Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

The registration, promotion,
distribution and sale of branded
pharmaceuticals and healthcare
products and any other
activities relating to healthcare.

Indirect
10.63%

Personal
representative of the

Sole Administrator,
Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi,
S.A.

Alentia Biotech, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The purchase, manufacture,
storage and marketing of and
intermediation in the sale of all
kinds of medicines, vaccines,
health and pharmaceutical
products and raw materials
employed in producing said
products, including any
complementary, subsidiary or
derivative activity or any activity
that leads to the
aforementioned.

Indirect
5.32%

Member of the Board
of Directors

Frosst Ibérica, S.A. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The provision, development,
manufacture, production, sale
and distribution of services,
articles, items and goods,
primarily in the pharmaceutical
field.

Indirect
10.63%

Personal
representative of the

Sole Administrator,
Laboratorios

Farmacéuticos Rovi,
S.A.
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The persons related to the director Juan López-Belmonte Encina who hold interests in other companies with a

type of activity that is analogous or complementary to that of Rovi are Juan López-Belmonte López, Iván López-

Belmonte Encina and Javier López-Belmonte Encina, who are also directors of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi,

S.A. Therefore, we refer to the information that each one of them has provided to meet the provisions of the

Capital Company Act, article 229.

- Iván López-Belmonte Encina, a member of the company’s Board of Directors, has the following interests and

relationships as mentioned in the Capital Company Act, article 229:

Company Activity Holding Function or position
Bertex Pharma GmbH The development, distribution

and marketing of technologies
for the manufacture of forms of
pharmaceutical and cosmetic
administration and consulting
activities in the pharmacological
development sector.

Indirect
10.63%

Sole Administrator

Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Gineladius, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The import, export, distribution
and marketing of all kinds of
articles relating directly to
integral female healthcare. The
registration, promotion,
distribution and wholesaling of
branded pharmaceuticals and
healthcare products.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

The registration, promotion,
distribution and sale of branded
pharmaceuticals and healthcare
products and any other
activities relating to healthcare.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Alentia Biotech, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The purchase, manufacture,
storage and marketing of and
intermediation in the sale of all
kinds of medicines, vaccines,
health and pharmaceutical
products and raw materials
employed in producing said
products, including any
complementary, subsidiary or
derivative activity or any activity
that leads to the
aforementioned.

Indirect
5.32%

None
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Frosst Ibérica, S.A. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The provision, development,
manufacture, production, sale
and distribution of services,
articles, items and goods,
primarily in the pharmaceutical
field.

Indirect
10.63%

None

The persons related to the director Iván López-Belmonte Encina who hold interests in other companies with a

type of activity that is analogous or complementary to that of Rovi are Juan López-Belmonte López, Juan López-

Belmonte Encina and Javier López-Belmonte Encina, who are also directors of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi,

S.A. Therefore, we refer to the information that each one of them has provided to meet the provisions of the

Capital Company Act, article 229.

- Javier López-Belmonte Encina, a member of the company’s Board of Directors, has the following interests and

relationships as mentioned in the Capital Company Act, article 229:

Company Activity Holding Function or position
Bertex Pharma GmbH The development, distribution

and marketing of technologies
for the manufacture of forms of
pharmaceutical and cosmetic
administration and consulting
activities in the pharmacological
development sector.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Gineladius, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The import, export, distribution
and marketing of all kinds of
articles relating directly to
integral female healthcare. The
registration, promotion,
distribution and wholesaling of
branded pharmaceuticals and
healthcare products.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

Import, export, representation,
production and sale of all kinds
of chemical products,
pharmaceutical products,
branded pharmaceuticals,
herbalist products, dietary
products, milks, flours.

Indirect
10.63%

None

Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A.
(Sociedad Unipersonal)

The registration, promotion,
distribution and sale of branded
pharmaceuticals and healthcare
products and any other
activities relating to healthcare.

Indirect
10.63%

None
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Alentia Biotech, S.L. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The purchase, manufacture,
storage and marketing of and
intermediation in the sale of all
kinds of medicines, vaccines,
health and pharmaceutical
products and raw materials
employed in producing said
products, including any
complementary, subsidiary or
derivative activity or any activity
that leads to the
aforementioned.

Indirect
5.32%

Member of the Board of
Directors

Frosst Ibérica, S.A. (Sociedad
Unipersonal)

The provision, development,
manufacture, production, sale
and distribution of services,
articles, items and goods,
primarily in the pharmaceutical
field.

Indirect
10.63%

None

The persons related to the director Javier López-Belmonte Encina who hold interests in other companies with a

type of activity that is analogous or complementary to that of ROVI are Juan López-Belmonte López, Juan López-

Belmonte Encina and Ivan López-Belmonte Encina, who are also directors of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi,

S.A. Therefore, we refer to the information that each one of them has provided to meet the provisions of the

Capital Company Act, article 229.

- Enrique Castellón Leal, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, has the following ownership interests,

positions and activities in other companies:

Company Activity Holding Function or position
Cross Road Biotech, S.A. Venture capital company

investing in biotechnology.
Direct

10.03%
Chairman

Biocross, S.L. Alzheimer biomarkers Direct
6.15%

Member of the Board
of Directors

OWL Genomics, S.L. Biomarkers Direct
3.58%

Member of the Board
of Directors

Lactest, S.L. Clinical diagnosis Direct
5.16%

None

TCD Pharma, S.L. Development of oncological
products

Direct
5.84%

Member of the Board
of Directors

Green Molecular, S.L. Anti-cancerigenous therapy and
other projects related to
different human pathologies.

Direct
7.52%

None

Nlife Therapeutics, S.L. Nanomedicine Direct
0.87%

None

Metabolic Renal Disease, S.L. Research, development and
marketing of chemical,
pharmaceutical and biological
products and preparations for
use in scientific study and
clinical application.

Direct
3.47%

None

Cross Road Biotech Inversiones
Biotecnológicas, S.G.E.C.R, S.A.

Administration and
management of venture capital
funds and the activities of
venture capital companies.

Direct
20.00%

Chairman



Free translation of the annual accounts originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with “Plan
General de Contabilidad” approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 of 16 November. In the event of discrepancy, the
Spanish version prevails.

LABORATORIOS FARMACÉUTICOS ROVI, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accounts for the year 2012
(Thousands of euros)

65

Advanced Marker Discovery, S.L. Research, development,
production, marketing and
distribution and importation o
biotechnological pharmaceutical
and healthcare products..

Direct
0.41%

None

- The director Miguel Corsini Freese does not hold ownership interests or positions or carry on activities in other

companies with a type of activity that is the same, analogous or complementary to the Company’s corporate

purpose.

31. Other related-party transactions

Transactions with group and other related companies are conducted under normal market terms and conditions,

in accordance with the agreements put in place between the parties.

a) Sale of goods and rendering of services

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Sales of goods:

- Subsidiaries (Note 22.a) 23,137 22,464

23,137 22,464

Rendering of services:

- Subsidiaries (Note 22.a) 2,060 2,120

- Joint ventures 100 -

2,160 2,120

25,297 24,584

The services that Rovi provides to its subsidiaries and the joint ventures are principally administration and

management services.

b) Goods and services purchased

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Goods purchases:

- Subsidiaries 46,015 44,319

46,015 44,319

Purchases of services:

- Subsidiaries 21 181

- Directors 29 27

- Entities in which Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López holds an ownership interest 660 458

710 666

46,725 44,985
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Purchase of services from companies in which Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López holds an interest relates to

finance lease (in 2011) and operating lease (in both years) payments to the companies Inversiones Borbollón S.L.

and Lobel y Losa Development, S.L. In 2012, this figure also includes the operating lease payments made to the

company Norba Inversiones, S.L.

c) Dividends paid

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Inversiones Clidia S.L. 4,241 5,472

Banco Mare Nostrum, S.A. - 382

Mr. Juan López-Belmonte López - 278

4,241 6,132

d) Dividends received

In 2012 and 2011, the Company received the following dividends from Group companies (Note 24):

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

- Rovi Contract Manufacturing, S.L. 3,495 2,342

- Bemipharma Manufacturing, S.L. 14 41

- Pan Química Farmacéutica, S.A. - 201

- Frosst Ibérica, S.A. 12,912 -

- Rovi Imaging, S.L. - 2,219

16,421 4,803

e) Other transactions

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Interest received

– Shareholders (e.1) - 50

– Subsidiaries 112 188

Interest paid

– Subsidiaries 370 -

– Shareholders and members of the Board of Directors (e.1) - 31

Loans granted

– Joint ventures 50 -
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e.1) The amounts recorded in 2011 refer to transactions between the Group and Banco Mare Nostrum, S.A., which

was a significant shareholder at the end of the 2011 reporting period but lost this status during 2012.

f) Balances at the end of the reporting period derived from sales and purchases of goods and services

Thousands of euros

2012 2011

Debit Credit Debit Credit

balance balance balance balance

Purchases/sales of goods or services

- Subsidiaries 32,316 45,041 4,657 15,426

- Companies in which Mr. Juan López Belmonte López

holds an ownership interest 289 105 289 111

- Joint ventures 30 - - -

- Directors - 5 - -

32,635 45,151 4,946 15,537

Income tax charge

- Subsidiaries (Note 23) 5,799 41 1,534 107

- Joint ventures - 80 - -

5,799 121 1,534 107

Loans granted

- Associates 2 - 2 -

- Joint ventures 50 - - -

52 - 2 -

Loans received

- Directors (Note 18.a.3) - - - 1,271

- - - 1,271

Dividends

- Subsidiaries 16,421 - - -

16,421 - - -

Other items:

- Directors 383 576 298 600

- Key management - 169 - 227

- Close relatives of directors or shareholders 156 - 156 -

539 745 454 827

TOTAL 55,446 46,017 6,936 17,742
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32. Environmental information

Any operation the main purpose of which is to minimize the environmental impact and protect and improve the

environment is considered an environmental activity.

The Company has not made any investments in systems, equipment or facilities for environmental activities in the

last two years.

In 2012, in order to contribute to the protection and improvement of the environment, the Company incurred

expenses of 132 thousand euros for waste elimination (69 thousand euros in 2011).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company was not aware of any possible environmental contingencies that

might be significant.

33. Events after the end of the reporting period

There have been no significant events since the end of the reporting period.

34. Fees of account auditors

The fees accrued by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. for account auditing services and other accounting

review and verification services in 2012 were 106 thousand and 54 thousand euros, respectively (106 and 63

thousand euros in 2011). Additionally, in 2012, PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. provided advsory services

in relation to compliance with the Code of Ethics of Farmaindustria for an amount of 66 thousand euros.

The audit fees for the consolidated group of which the Company is the parent totalled 177 thousand euros (189

thousand euros at 31 December, 2011), which includes the 106 thousand euros relating to the Company itself,

mentioned in the preceding paragraph (106 thousand euros in 2011).

In addition, fees were accrued for services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers Jurídico y Fiscal, S.L., including tax

and legal advice, and PricewaterhouseCoopers Asesores de Negocios, S.L. in the year 2012 for 325 thousand euros

(218 thousand euros in 2011). In 2011, PricewaterhouseCoopers Asesores de Negocios, S.L. provided advisory

services for a total amount of 46 thousand euros.
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The Board of Directors of Laboratorios Farmacéuticos Rovi, S.A. (ROVI) issues the following management report

in accordance with Article 262, 148 d) and 526 of the Spanish Capital Company Act (“Ley de Sociedades de

Capital”), and 61 bis of the Securities Market Law.

1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Revenues have increased by 1% during 2012, to reach 161.3 million euros.

Sales of prescription-based pharmaceutical products rose 10% to 110.8 million euros in 2012. In the second

quarter of 2011, Fitoladius was sold to a third party and, in June 2011, EMLA was stopped to be marketed and

started to be only promoted. Excluding the impact of Fitoladius and EMLA distribution in 2011, sales of

prescription-based pharmaceutical products increased by 14% in 2012.

ROVI’s low molecular weight heparin (LMWH), Bemiparin, maintained a growth rate, with sales up 10% to 55.7

million euros. Sales of Bemiparin in Spain (Hibor®) increased by 3% to 36.6 million euros, while international

sales rose 26% to 19.1 million euros in 2012 supported by the increased presence of Bemiparin, through strategic

alliances, in countries where it was already present, and by the launch of the product in six new countries,

Mexico, Venezuela, Saudi Arabia, Iraq, Syria and Oman, during 2012.

Sales of Vytorin® and Absorcol®, the first of the five licenses of MSD, launched in January 2011, increased by

2.2 times to 12.4 million euros in 2012.

Sales of Thymanax®, an innovative antidepressant from Laboratoires Servier, launched in March 2010 and for

which ROVI has a co-marketing agreement covering Spain, increased by 35% to 11.6 million euros in 2012.

Sales of Corlentor®, a specialty product for stable angina and chronic heart failure from Laboratoires Servier,

rose 29% to 9.2 million euros in 2012. In February 2012, Corlentor® was approved by the European Commission

for the treatment of patients with chronic heart failure
1
. The European Commission’s decision to authorise this

new indication for Corlentor® followed the review of data from the SHIfT trial, the largest-ever morbi-mortality

study of treatments for chronic heart failure involving more than 6000 patients. It demonstrated that the treatment

significantly reduced the risk of death and hospitalisation from heart failure, and improved the quality of life of

people living with the disease.
2,31

This reduction in mortality was highly significant in patients with a heart rate of

75 beats per minute (bpm), or above, for whom Corlentor® is now indicated.

Sales of Osseor®, a specialty product for the treatment of postmenopausal osteoporosis from Laboratoires

Servier, decreased by 14% to 6.1 million euros in 2012.

Sales of Exxiv®, a selective COX-2 inhibitor from Merck Sharp & Dohme (MSD), decreased by 11% to 7.2 million

euros in 2012, mainly due to a slight deceleration of the COX-2 market.

1. EMA announcement
2. Swedberg K, Komajda M, Böhm M et al. Ivabradine and outcomes in chronic heart failure (SHIFT): a randomised placebo-
controlled study. Lancet 2010; 376:875-85
3. Ekman I, Chassany O, Komajda M et al. Heart rate reduction with ivabradine and health related quality of life in patients with
chronic heart failure: results from the SHIFT study. Eur Heart J. 2011; DOI:10.1093/eurheartj/ehr343. Available at:
http://eurheartj.oxfordjournals.org
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On 21
st

of July of 2011, the Spanish government announced a package of measures to reduce the

pharmaceutical expenditure

(see http://www.msps.es/gabinetePrensa/notaPrensa/desarrolloNotaPrensa.jsp?id=2165).

The impact for ROVI of these measures, which were effective from November 2011, on 2012 sales was less than

1 million euros.

On 20th of April of 2012, the Spanish government announced a new package of measures in order to achieve

savings of more than 7 billion euros in healthcare expenditure. These new measures were published on the

official state gazette on the 24
th

of April (see http://www.boe.es/boe/dias/2012/04/24/pdfs/BOE-A-2012-5403.pdf).

Among these new measures, (i) the exclusion of some drugs from reimbursement and (ii) the pharmaceutical

copayment, became more relevant. The list of drugs excluded from reimbursement was published on the 29
th

of

June (see http://www.msssi.gob.es/ profesionales/farmacia/pdf/ProyectoResolucionExclusion.pdf), without any

material impact for the ROVI product portfolio, and the pharmaceutical copayment was effective from the 1
st

of

July. The introduction of the latest package of measures, especially of the pharmaceutical copayment, meant a

monthly pharmaceutical expenditure decrease of above 20% on average from July to December 2012 and the

number of prescriptions was reduced monthly by 15% on average in the same period. In addition, according to

Farmaindustria
4
,
2
the Spanish Pharmaceutical Association, the Spanish pharmaceutical market will decrease by

13% in 2013, in line with 2012. Despite the difficult situation that the pharmaceutical industry is going through,

ROVI forecasts to continue growing but it expects these factors could slow down its growth.

In the second quarter of 2011, Fitoladius® product was sold to a third party. This sale contributed revenue of 5.6

million euros in 2011. Revenue related to Fitoladius distribution amounted to 0.7 million euros in 2011.

In 2012, ROVI did not register sales from the EMLA® distribution, a topical anaesthetic licensed by AstraZeneca

that has been marketed by ROVI since 1998. In June 2011, the EMLA® distribution agreement with AstraZeneca

was replaced by a promotion agreement. Revenue related to EMLA® promotion amounted to 1.3 million euros in

2012. Revenue related to EMLA® distribution (in the first half of 2011) and promotion (in the second half of 2011)

amounted to 3.7 million euros in 2011.

Sales of Pneumovax®-23, a non recurrent vaccine that helps to protect against serious infections caused by the

bacterium pneumococcus, licensed by Sanofi Pasteur MSD in July 2008 for marketing by ROVI, reached 0.4

million euros in 2012 compared to 1.2 million euros in 2011 due to budget constraints from the Spanish

government.

Sales of over-the-counter pharmaceutical products declined by 14% to 5.9 million euros in 2012 compared to

the previous year. This was mainly as consequence of the reduction of consumption in the current Spanish

economic environment.

Sales of contrast imaging agents and other hospital products decreased by 6% to 20.7 million euros in 2012.

Sales outside Spain increased by 23% to 25.0 million euros in 2012 compared with the previous year. Sales

outside Spain represented 15% of operating revenue in 2012 compared to 13% in 2011.

4. http://www.coib.org/uploadsBO/Generica/Documents/24-10.PDF

http://www.msps.es/gabinetePrensa/notaPrensa/desarrolloNotaPrensa.jsp?id=2165
http://www.boe.es/boe/dias/2012/04/24/pdfs/BOE-A-2012-5403.pdf
http://www.msssi.gob.es/ profesionales/farmacia/pdf/ProyectoResolucionExclusion.pdf
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2. OTHER SIGNIFICANT AGREEEMENT

ROVI and UCB end their commercial relationship with regards to Cimzia®

In September 2012, ROVI and UCB reached an agreement under which they ended their commercial relationship

with regards to Cimzia® (certolizumab pegol), PEGylated anti-TNF alpha drug for the treatment of rheumatoid

arthritis disease.

Since 15th of June 2010, Cimzia® had been jointly co-promoted in Spain by ROVI and UCB. In this period and as

a result of the activities carried out by ROVI, Cimzia® is available in more than 80% of the key public hospitals,

which means that more than 85% of the Spanish population already has access to the drug and can benefit from

its clinical efficiency, shown by a significant improvement in the quality of life of the patients treated.

Under this agreement, Cimzia® is being promoted and commercialised exclusively by UCB in Spain from 1st of

September 2012. Most of the ROVI sales team that promoted Cimzia® among the healthcare professionals joined

UCB staff.

ROVI continues to commercialise and promote its Rheumatology product portfolio in osteoarticular pathology, as

well as continuing to develop its business within the hospital sector.

Corlentor® receives approval for use in heart failure

In February 2012, ROVI announced that the company’s heart rate lowering agent, Corlentor® (ivabradine), the

first selective If channel inhibitor, was approved by the European Commission for the treatment of patients with

chronic heart failure. Corlentor
®

(ivabradine) is a product that has been developed by Laboratoires Servier and is

marketed by them as Procolaran
®
.

3. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

ROVI’s R&D projects are mainly focused on the ISM® platform, which is an own proprietary drug delivery system

aimed to improve patients’ therapeutic compliance. The most advanced candidate is Risperidone-ISM®, a

second-generation antipsychotic drug. The ISM technology has already been validated after obtaining positive

results from a “proof of concept” phase I study on healthy subjects. In 2012, ROVI held a pre-IND meeting with

the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) in order to get scientific advice on the drug development program of

Risperidone-ISM®. As planned, patients’ enrolment for additional Phase I and II studies are being started by the

first half of 2013.

Besides, the ISM® program has also been advancing with two additional compounds. Accordingly, the first clinical

trial with another second-generation antipsychotic drug, paliperidone, is planned to start by second half of 2013,

and preclinical testing is progressing as well with a novel quarterly injection formulation of letrozole; letrozol (an

aromatase inhibitor) is a well-established therapy for hormone-dependent breast cancer and at present it is only

available as a once daily oral formulation.
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ROVI is also researching in glycomics. The degree of specialization achieved in this area allows consideration of

the expansion of applications, indications and alternative mechanisms of action for the heparin-derived products

and other glycosaminoglycans, based on both anticoagulant and non-anticoagulant activities.

4. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Company has invested 4.5 millon euros (3.7 millon euros in 2011).

5. TREASURY SHARES TRANSACTIONS

In the course of 2012, the Company acquired a total of 361,939 of its own shares (28,546 in 2011), paying the

amount of 1,838 thousand euros for them (156 thousand euros in 2011). Likewise, it resold a total of 293,292 of

its own shares (28,882 in 2011) for an amount of 1,488 thousand euros (156 thousand euros in 2011). These

shares had been acquired at a weighted average cost of 1,700 thousand euros (185 thousand euros in 2011),

giving rise to a loss of 212 thousand euros on the sale (in 2011, the sale of treasury shares represented a loss of

29 thousand euros), which was taken to reserves. At 31 December, 2012, the Company held 371,940 treasury

shares (303,293 at 31 December, 2011).

6. HEADCOUNT EVOLUTION

The average number of employees during 2012 has been 418, compared to 414 in 2011.

7. ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

Any operation the main purpose of which is to minimize the environmental impact and protect and improve the

environment is considered an environmental activity. In 2012, in order to contribute to the protection and

improvement of the environment, the Company incurred expenses of 0,13 million euros for waste elimination

(0,07 million euros in 2011).

8. OUTLOOK FOR 2013

ROVI expects to grow operating revenue from mid to high single digit for the full year 2013, in spite of (i) the

impact of the latest package of measures, approved by the Spanish Government on 20 April 2012, which was

effective on the 1
st

of July in order to obtain savings of more than 7 billion euros in healthcare expenditure, and (ii)

the decrease of the Spanish pharmaceutical market of 13% expected for 2013, according to Farmaindustria
1
, the

Spanish Pharmaceutical Association.

ROVI expects its growth drivers to be Bemiparin, its existing portfolio of specialty pharmaceuticals, last launches

such as Vytorin, Absorcol and Thymanax and new product distribution licenses.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The main detected and managed

risks of the Company are detailed below:

- Market risk

Market risk is divided in:

a) Foreign exchange risk: is very low as virtually all assets and liabilities of the Company are in euros, with

no subsidiary out of the Euro zone. Additionally the majority of the foreign transactions are carried out in

euros.

b) Price risk: the Company is exposed to price risk by its short-term and long-term financial investments. To

manage the price risk arising from the investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio.

c) Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to an interest rate risk in respect of cash flows on long-term

borrowing transactions at variable rates. The risk, however, is slight since most of the Company’s debt

consists of refundable advances from official organisations on which there is no interest rate risk.

- Credit risk.

Credit risk is managed by groups. The credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, long-term financial

investments, deposits held at call in banks and financial institutions and other receivables available for sale, as

well as from wholesalers and retailers, including accounts receivables and committed transactions. The Group

monitors the solvency of these assets by reviewing external credit ratings and qualifying internally assets which

are not externally rated.

It should be mentioned here that despite this management work, the Regional Government continue to be

extremely slow in making payments for pharmaceutical supplies, to the detriment of companies operating in this

sector. Despite this, the company’s financial position is sound and its liquidity unaffected.

- Liquidity risk.

Management monitors the liquidity estimates of the Group according to the expected cash flows; therefore, the

Group always has sufficient cash and trade securities to confront its liquidity requirements.

10. CORPORATE GOVERNMENT ANNUAL REPORT

Appendix 1 includes the Corporate Government Annual Report prepared by the Company for 2012.
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11. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no significant events since the end of the reporting period.

Madrid, 20 February, 2013
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APPENDIX 1

CORPORATE GOVERMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2012
















































































































































